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Notice is hereby given that the 28t Annual General Meeting of the members

NOTICE

of Arohan Financial Services Limited (‘the Company”) will be held at its
Registered office PTI Building, 4th Floor, DP-9, Sector-V, Salt Lake, Kolkata
Parganas North WB 700091 India, on, Monday, 5t August, 2019 at 11:00

A.M. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the

Company for the financial vear ended 318t March, 2019, the Report of

the Auditors and Director’s Report thereon;

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements comprising of
Statement of Profit & Loss Account, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow
Statement for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 together with
the Notes as annexed thereto with the Auditors’ Report and the
Directors’ Report dated 15% May, 2019, as circulated to the
Shareholders of the Company and submitted to this meeting, be and

the same are hereby received and adopted.”

2. To re-appoint Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai (DIN 00606290) as Director,

who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointment.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the approval
of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
reappointment of Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai (DIN 00606290) as a

director, to the extent that he is require to retire by rotation.

|F

Arohan Financial Services Limited P W8

Registered OfficEA%E duR&iAg 4 Floor, DP Block, DP-9, Sector-, Salt Lake, Kolkata - 700091
T:+91 33 4015 6000 | CIN No. U74140WB1991PLC053189



%i@% ﬁ\% E‘ZE g\ﬁ gm‘% ég'% E%%
o,

. AVISHYARE - INTELLECAP EHIERPRISE

3. To re‘-appoint Mr. Anurag Agrawal (DIN 02385780] as Director, who.

retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-

appointiment.

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the approval
of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
‘reappointment of Mr, Anurag Agrawal (DIN 02385780) as a director, to

the extent that he is require to retire by rotation.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4, Increase Borrowing Power of the Company.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications,

the following resolutions as Special Resolutions:

«RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolution passed
by the Members in their meeting held on May 15, 2018, the consent
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors
and/or any Committee of Directors thereof, under Section 180(1)(c) of
the C.ompan-ies Act, 2013 to borrow any Sum or sums of m‘oni-es-. from
time to time notwithstanding that the money or the monies to be
borrowed, together. with the monies already borrowed by the
Company, may exceed aggregate of its paid-up capital, free reserves
and securities premium, apart from temporary loans obtaitied from
the company’s bankers in the ordinary course -of busingss, provided
however, the total amount so borrowed shall not exceed INR 7,500

crores {Rupees Seven Thousand Five Hundred. Crores only).

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Director, Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary be and are hereby severally
authorized to file necessary forms with-the Registrar of Companies,
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Kolkata ard to do or cause to do such other acts, deeds things and
execute all such documents, undertaking as may be considered

necessary in connection with or incidental to the above.”

5. Creation of Charge and Providing Security.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications,

the following reésolutions as Special Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT in supersession of the earlier resolution passed
by the Members in their meeting held on May 15, 2018, the consent
of the Company be and is hereby accorded in terms of Section
180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 to pledge, mortgage and/or charge by the Board of
Directors and/or Committee of Directors of the Company, by way of
charge on all the immovable and movable properties of the Company
in favour of the Banks, Financial Institutions, any other lenders or
debenture trustees to secure thé amount borrowed by the Company
or any third party from time to time for the due paymient of the
Principal together with interest; charges, costs, expenses and all
other monies payable by the Company or any third party in respect of
such borrowings provided that the maximum extent of the
indebtedness ‘secured by the properties of the Company does not
exceed INR 7,500 crores (Rupees Seven Thousand Five Hundred

Cores only) at any time.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Managing Director, Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary be and are hereby severally
authorized to finalize with Banks/Financial Institutions the
documents for creating aforesaid mortgage and/or the charge and to
do all such acts and things as inay be necessary for giving effect to

the above resolution.”™ %/
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6. To Issue Non-Convertible Debentures.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications,

the _.'fo'lloWin_g resolutions as Special Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Riles framed there under, as may be amended from time to
time, and subject to other applicable regulations/guidelines, consent
of the members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded to the
Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the
Board which term shall include any committee thereof) for making
offer(s) or Invitation (s) to subscribe to Non Convertible Debentures,
including bonds, on private placement hasis, ih orie or more tranches
from time to time, during a period of one year from date of pa's‘s_i_hg of
this resolution within the overall borrowing limits of the Company not
exceeding INR, 5000 crores, as 'approved By the members, from time

to time.™

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board/or any Committee be and is
hereby authorized and empowered to arrange or settle the terms and
conditions on which all such monies are to be. borrowed from time. to
time as to interest, repayment, security or otherwise howsoever as it
‘may think fit and to do all such acts deeds and things, to execute. all
such documents, instruments and writings as may be required to give

effect to this resolution,”

7. Payment of Commission to Directors
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications,
the following resolutions as Special Résolutions:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the recommendation of Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, the Board pursuant to the provisions

of Section 197 & 198 and other applicable provisions, if any of the

E .
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Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications,

enactment or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) be and
is hereby recommends the payment of commission to the Directors of
the Company within the overall limit as per the Companies Act, 2013,
approval of the members, be and is hereby accorded for payment to
Commission to Promoters Directors as decided by the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors of the Company.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board be and is hereby authorized to
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give

effect to this resolution”

Date: 15t May, 2019 For Arohan Financial Services Limited

NS

—

Place: Kolkata
Anirudh Singh G Thakur

Company Secretary and Compliance
Officer
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NOTES
1. The Explanatory Statement under Section 102. of the Companies Act,
2013, as amended, in respect of the special business is annexed

herewith and forms part of the notice.

5. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF
AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

3.  Pursuant to Section 20(2) of the Companies Act; 2013, read with Rule
35 of the Companiés (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, each as amended,
companies are permitted to send official documents to their

shareholders electronically.

4. All documents referred to in the notice and in the accomparnying
explanatory statement aré open for inspection at the registered office
of the Company during office hours on all working days, except
Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, between 9:30 a.m. Indian
Standard Time and 6:30 p.m. Indian Standard Time, up to the date of
the Annual General Meeting. (%/
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 TO THE NOTICE DATED 18™ MAY, 2019 ({THE
“NOTICE”)

JTtem no. 4 & 5

Increase Borrowing Power of the Company and Creation of Charge and
Providing Security.

Keeping in view the Com-pa.ny’sexistingfand future financial requirements to
support its businéss operations, the Company needs additional funds. For
this purpose, the Company is desirous of raising finance from various Banks
and/or Financial Institutions and/or any other lending institutions and/or
Bodies Corporate and/or such other persons/ individuals as may be
considered fit, which, together ‘with the monies already borrowed by the
Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s
bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate of the.
paid-up capital, free reserves and securities premium of the Company.
Hence- it is proposed to increase the maximum borrowing limits upto INR
7,500 crores (Rupees Seven Thousand Five Hundred only). Pursuant to
Section 180(1) {c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors ¢annot
borrow tnore than the aggregate amount of the paid-up capital, free reserves
and securities premium of the Company at any one time except with the
consent of the members of the Company in a general meeting. In order to
facilitate securing the bofrowing made by the Company, it would be
necessary to create charge on the assets or whole of the undettaking of the
Company. Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act; 2013 provides for the
power to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or suibstantialily the
whole of the undertaking of the Co‘mpan_y stubject to the -approval of

members in the general meeting.

The Board recommends the resolutions set out in item no. 4 & 5 of the
Notice for your approval,
[None of the directors or managers or key managerial personnel of the

Company or the relatives thereof are interested in these resolutions:|
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Item no. 6

Issue Non- Convertible Debentures

The Board may, at an appropriate time; consider offering or inviting
subscriptions for secured/ unsecured redeemable ton-convertible
debentures, in one or more series / tranches, on private placement, issuable
/ redeemable at par, in order to augment long-term resources for financing
inter alia the ongoing capital expenditure and for general corporate
purposes. Section 71 of the Act which deals with the issuance of debentures
read with Section 42 of the Act which deals with the offer or invitation for
subscription of securities of a company on private placement and Rule 14 of
the Companies (Préspectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 provide.
that a company which intends to meke a private placement of -its non-
convertible debentures, shall, before making an offer or invitation for
subscription, obtain approval of its shareholders by means of a special
resolution. It shall be sufficient if the company passes a special resolution
only once in a year for all the. offers or invitations for such non-convertible
debentures during the year.

Keeping in view the above, consent of the members is sought for passing the
Special Resolution as set out at Item No. 6 of the Notice. This enabling
resolution authorises the ‘Board of Directers/ or any Committee of the
Company to offer or invite subs'cription for redeemable non-convertible
debentures, as may be required by the Company, from time to time and as
set out herein, for a period of one year from the date of passing this

resolution.

The Board recommeénds the resolutions. set out in item no. 6 of the Natice for
your approval,
[Nonie of the directors or managers or key managerial personnel of the

Company or the relatives thereof are interested in these resolutions.]

*%
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Item no. 7

Payment of Commission to Directors
As per the recommendation of the Nomiination and Remuneration
Committee in their Meeting dated 15% May 2019, the Board proposed to pay
commission to the Promoter directors in addition to the payment of
commission to the Independent directors, which was already approved in
the last Annual General Meeting in terms of the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and its applicable rules and the Article of Association
of the Company.

This commission being paid to the Promoter Directors is in light of the fact
that Promoter Directors are not paid any sitting fees right from the
beginning till date and they have contributed significantly to the growth of
‘the Company from the September 2012, whien the Promoter Group took over
the Company.

The actual sum of the proposed commission to the individual Directars will
be as approved by thé Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board
of Directors of the Company within the overall limit as specified in the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Board recommends the resolutions set out in item no. 7 of the Notice for
your approval.

[Except Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai and Mr. Apurag Agrawal, Promoter
Directors of the Company, none of the directors or managers or key
managerial personnel of the Company or the relatives thereof are interested.

in these resolutions.]

Date: 15t May, 2019 For Arohan Financial Services Limited

Place: Kolkata ib\@/\_, : \

Anirudh Singh G Thakur

Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

A
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Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

AROHAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U74140WB1991PTC053189
REGD. OFFICE: P11 Building, 4th Floor, DP-9, Sector-5, Salt Lake Kolkata
Parganas North WB 700091 IN.

Name of the members(s) i .c.oooviimmiii RO
Registered AAATESS . tui e airreeri vt
E-mail Id:. i weerrrans T e ivieinenens erearanns e edenrataneraeenas e
Folio NOT vvvrecriiiiiaecriniens ST

1/We, being the member (s) Of eveererrenns shares of the AROHAN FINANCIAL
SERVICES LIMITED., hereby appoint:

| SRR b aeraaa o) IR ... having e-mail id ..o .or failing him

12) JR UURUSORRRTITN <) SO evehaving e-mail'id ... .....or failing him

) ORI IO Of i, having e-mail id ... or failing him

and whose. si_g‘nature[s_). are appended below as my/our proxy to attend and
vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, August 5, 2019 at 11:00
A.M. at REGISTERED OFFICE PTI BUILDING, 4TH FLOOR, DP-9, SECTOR-
5, SALT LAKE KOLKATA PARGANAS NORTH WB 700091 INDIA and at any.

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

** T wish my above Proxy to vote in the manner as iridicated in the box

helow: (%/

Page 10 of 14



.5‘5‘ WPy
,’ég%%% % i AR
RIS - MVELLECAT EXERFREE

Resolutions

For Against

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

Consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements, Report of the Auditors and
Director’s Report of the Company.

. Reappointment of Vineet Chandra Rai as
Director who is retiring by rotation.

. Reappointment of Anurag Agrawal as

Director who is retiring by rotation,

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4.

Increase Borrowing Power of the Company

5. Creation of Charge and Providing Security
6.
7

.. Payment of Comimission to Directors

Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures

oooooooooo

YRR L R T ]

Sighed this...... day of......... 2019 Signature of- shareholder

........

..................................

...................................

Ad A EEREL AN AR ELa s A R bR a b T

Signature of third proxy holder
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Note:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed
and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than
48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A proxy need not to be a member of the Company.

3, A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty
and holding in the aggregate not more than 10 % of the total share
capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more
than 10 % of the total share of the Company carrying voting righits
may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as
a proxy for any other persen or shareholder.

4, **This is only optional. Please put a ‘tick’ in the appropriate column
against theé resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or
‘Against’ colimn blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy
will be entitied to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate,

5. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a inember {rom attending the
meéting in person if he so wishes.

6. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be

sufficient, but name of all the joint holders should be stated.

ﬁv

i
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ATTENDENCE SLIP
AROHAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
CIN: U74140WB1991PLC053189
REGD. OFFICE: PTI Building, 4th Floor, DP-9, Sector-5 ,Salt Lake Kolkata
Parganas North WB 700091 IN.

PLEASE FILL ATTENDANCE SLIP-AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE
OF THE MEETING HALL.

Folio No:
No. of Shares

NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE SHAREHOLDER: ........ evaeraneraer S .

e T L L L e L e R LR L LR S

R R R e RN R C AN R L LR Rl

T hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of AROHAN
FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED held oni Monday, August 5, 2019 at 11:00
A.M, at PTI Building, 4th Floor, DP-9, Sector-5 ,Salt Lake Kolkata Parganas
North WB 700091 IN,

Signature of Member / Proxy
Notes:
(1) Members/ Proxy holders are requested to produce the attendance slip

duly signed for admission to the Meeting hall.

(2) Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report for

reference at the Meeting:
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Dear Members,

Your Board of Directors (the “Board”) takes pleasure in presenting the
Annual Report of AROHAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED (Erstwhile
Arohan Financial Services Private Limited) (the “Company”) together with the

audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 20109.

FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial performance of the Company is summarized below:

(INR in Cr)
''''' FY 2019 FY 2018  Change (%)
Total Revenue 634.65 327.02 94.07
Less: Total expenditure 481.44 281.59 70.97
Profit Before Tax 153.21 45.42 237.32
Profit After Tax 112.08 29.67 pl s
Earnings Per Share (EPS)
-Basic (in INR) 12.30 3:85 267.16

-Diluted (in INR) 12.27 3.35 266.27

The operational highlights of the Ccmpany are summarized below:

'Year ended March 31, ~ FY 2019  FY2018 Change (%)

‘Number of branches - 593 435 36.32
Number of members (in million) 1.8 Lsd 63.64
Number of employees 4,765 3,3 18 43.61

Gross loan portfolio (in crores) 4044 2171 86.32

The Company’s overall growth during the period under review was
remarkable, creating milestones for every business segments in the

Company’s history. In line with the growth-plan the Company was able to

reach a landmark figure cf INR 4,000 crores.
presence in 13 States in India which inclu’gi;.é‘ﬁ@*f
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microfinance and 3 additional States in the MSME business. The major

performance ratios such as Opex, Margin, ROA, and CRAR were under

control and optimum. ROE was close to 23.61 %; this was significantly

higher from the budgeted numbers. The rating has improved, ALM was
positive, even in difficult situations, the Company was able to raise sufficient
funds for its expected growth, and the average cost of fund was around
11.04 % at the year end. While the interest income grew by 88%, the fee
income grew significantly by 149%, thereby contributing to the Increasing
profitability. The fee income has increased due to growth in cross-sell
revenue and securitization & assignment deals. The PBT has increased by
237% due to lower expenses as compared to revenue. The net worth has
increased due to the infusion of INR 193 crores equity capital and higher
retained earnings. Return on Equity (ROE) and Return on Assets (ROA) has
improved due to better profitability achieved (PBT of INR 153 crores) than
the budget (PBT of INR 134 crores).The gross AUM of the Company has
reached to INR 4044 crores at the end of FY 19 and the Company was
operating with 586 organic & 7 MSME branches and serving nearly 1.8
million customers. The Company continues to maintain Net NPA status at
zero. About 91% disbursement was being carried out in cashless mode and

Tab based collection was almost 55% at the end of March 2019.

The financial year 2018-19 has also been a year of recognition for all of us,
starting with the Dun & Bradstreet MFIN Award for the “Best Risk
Resilience Framework” in the industry, the IICSR CSR Award for our Water
project, the ICC CSR sustainability jury recognition, the 3 SKOCH awards
for “Strategic Alliance Initiative”, “Financial Inclusion, Microcredit and Rural
Expansion” & “Strategic IT Transformation”, the AMFI awards for “Best
Coverage in Eact India”, “Best Credit Plus Activities® and “Best Client
Centric Initiatives” to the big one, "Microfinznce Organisation of the Year
2018" by ACCESS Assist and HSBC. |
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CAPITAL INFUSION

During the year, the Company has preferentially allotted 13,50,000 equity
shares to Arohan ESOP Trust and has also allotted 1,28,58,563 equity

shares on a private placement basis to the promoter, promoter group and

some identified investors.

Post allotment of equity shares as aforesaid, the issued, subscribed and
paid-up share capital of the Company stands at INR 1,02,67,39,160 (Rupees
One Hundred Two Crore Sixty Seven Lakh Thirty Nine Thousand One
Hundred and Sixty) comprising of 10,26,73,916 (Ten Crore Twenty Six Lakh
Seventy Three Thousand Nine Hundred and Sixteen) equity shares of INR 10
each as on March 31, 2019. The net worth of the Company as on March 31,
2019 was INR 681 crores. During the year, the Company has not raised

capital in any other manner.

During the year, the Company has issued Unsecured, Subordinated, Rated,
Listed, Redeemable, Non-convertible Debentures of face value of INR 10

each, aggregating to INR 35 crores on a private placement basis.

Further, during the vyear, the Company has redeemed the following

Debentures;

* 14.75% Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable,Non-Convertible
Debentures of face value of INR 5,00,000 each aggregating up to INR
29,05,00,000 (581 Debentures) on November 16, 2018;

* 14.30% Series 1 Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-Convertible
Debentures of face value of INR 10,00,000 each aggregating up to INR
33,00,00,000 (330 Debentures) on December 18, 2018; and

* 14.30% Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non-Convertible
Debentures of face value of INR 10,00,000 each aggregating up to INR
20,00,00,000 (200 Debentures) on January 25, 2019,
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DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of your Company, after considering holistically the
relevant circumstances has decided that it would be prudent, not to

recommend any Dividend for the year under review.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

In accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act)
and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai and
Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Directors of the Company, retires by rotation at the

ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible has offered themselves

for re-appointment.

The Company during the year has appointed Mr. David Arturo Paradiso as
an Alternate Director to Mr. Kasper Svarrer, Nominee of Maj Invest Financial
Inclusion Fund II K/s, Mr. Paul Robine as a Nominee Director of TR Capital
[II Mauritius, replaced Mr. K C Vaid with Mr. Prakash Kumar as a Nominee
Director of Small Industries Development Bank of India (SIDBI) as per SIDBI
Act, 1990 and Mr. Sumantra Banerjee was re-appointed as an Independent
Director of the Company for the second term of five year as per Section 149
of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year, Mr. Manoj Kumar Nambiar, Managing Director, Mr. Milind
Ramchandra Nare, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Anirudh Singh G Thakur,

Company Secretary are the Key Managerial Persons (‘KMP”) of the
Company.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received declarations from all Independent Directors of
the Company confirming that they meet the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act 2013 and SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
LODR Regulations”).

4|Page
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DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY, ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE OF THE
COMPANY:

The Company doesn’t have any subsidiary, associate and joint venture.,

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information
and explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following

statements in terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March
31, 2019, the applicable accounting standards read with
requirements set out under Schedule I to the Act, have been

followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019 and of the Profit and
loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care towards the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a 'going

concern' basis;

¢) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be
followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls

are adequate and were operating effectively; and

—,

e
ZSERNN
/ / £ G \\/ﬁ "\
(=~ )

| U;;‘ Kolkata m)
5|Page 3




A AROHAN

; g AAVISHKAAR - INTELLECAP ENTERPRISE
f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance

with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are

adequate and operating effectively.

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT,
PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The current policy is to have an appropriate mix of executive and
independent directors to maintain the independence of the Board, and
separate its functions of governance and management. As on March 31,
2019, the Board consists of 12 members (13 including Alternate Director),
which includes one Executive Director, two non-Executive Directors, four
Independent Directors, and five Nominee Directors. The Chairman of the
Company is independent director, in terms of the relevant provisions of the

Companies Act 2013. The Board periodically evaluates the need for change

in its composition and size.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the criteria
for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommends to the Board, a policy relating to the remuneration
for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees. The

recommendation of the committee is forwarded to the Board for its approval.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee decided the remuneration of

executive Directors and key managerial personnel on the basis of following

criteria;

(a) The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality

required to run the company successfully;

(b) Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets

appropriate performance benchmarks; and
R
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() Remuneration to executive directors, key managerial personnel and

senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive
pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate

to the working of the company and its goals.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The details of the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company held
during the year are mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report which is

provided separately in this Annual Report.

AUDITORS

(i) Statutory Auditors — M/s Walker Chandiok & Co LLP, (Firm
Registration Number -001076N/ N500013), Chartered Accountants
were re-appointed as statutory auditors of the Company in the
Annual General Meeting held on15/05 /2018 for a term up to five
years, i.e. till the FY 2022-23. They have confirmed their eligibility
under section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 to carry out the
audit for the FY 19-20.

(i)  Secretarial Auditors - M/s. Jayshri Tulsyan & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretary (Certificate of Practice No. 096)
were appointed as Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct
Secretarial Audit for the Company for the Financial Year 2018-19
as required under Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
rule made thereunder. The Secretarial Audit Report for FY 18-19 is

appended as Annexure I to the Directors’ Report.

There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remark made by the
Statutory Auditor and Secretarial Auditor in their reports, save and except

disclaimer made by them in discharge of their professional obligation.
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DETAILS OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE STATUTORY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors of the Company have

not reported any fraud as required under Section 143(12) of the Companies
Act 2013.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS OR GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Pursuant to the clarification dated February 13, 2015 issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs and Section 186(11) of the Companies Act 2013, the
provision of Section 134 (3)(g) of the Companies Act 2013 requiring
disclosure of particulars of the loans given, investments made or guarantees

given or securities provided is not applicable to the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions entered into with Related Parties as defined under the
Companies Act 2013 and during the year under review were in the ordinary
course of business and at an arm’s length pricing basis and do not attract
the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act 2013. The details of the
transactions with related parties, if any, are placed before the Audit
Committee from time to time. Details of the related party transactions,
which are exempted according to a proviso to Section 188 of the Companies
Act 2013, during FY 19 are disclosed in note of the financial statements.

The policy on Related Party Transaction, as approved by the Board, is

displayed on the website of the Company at https:/ /arohan.in/resources/2019-
06-12-15-2 1-06-Related%20Party%20Policy. PDF

AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO STATUTORY RESERVES

During the year the Company has transferred an amount of INR 22.42
crores to Statutory Reserve as required 'LQ.,_“EZ%?I” Profit after tax) under
Section 45-IC of RBI Act, 1934. £

7 oA S e
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MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY. APFEGTNG Hire
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company, which has occurred between the end of the

financial year of the Company i.e. March 31, 2019 and the date of the
Directors’ Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO UNDER SECTION 134(3)(M) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act 2013 relating to
conservation of energy and technology absorption do not apply to the

Company. The Company has, however, used information technology

extensively in its operations.

During the year under review, the Company’s earning in foreign exchange
was INR 0.035 crores. The details of foreign earnings have also been

captured in note of the Financial Statements.

ANNUAL EVALUATION OF THE BOARD

The Board pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act
2013, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) has carried out
evaluation of individual Director’s performance. In this regard the NRC had
met on May 15, 2019 to carry out the above mentioned evaluation. With the
introduction and use of Diligent Software for the Board and Committee
meetings, this time the director’s evaluation was carried out electronically in
a secured environment. The directors were allowed to carry out the
evaluation in Diligent software with their respective secured log in. A detail
report on the director’s performance evaluation as generated from Diligent
software, was placed before the Board and Committee in their meeting dated
May 15, 2019. |

The Members of the NRC reviewed the performance of all the individual

Directors of the Company in accordance with the relevant sections of the
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Companies Act 2013. The Committee agreed that the effectiveness of

participation of the Directors in various meetings of the Board and its
Committees were satisfactory. All the Directors made significant
contributions in ensuring ethical standards and the statutory as well as
regulatory compliances. The Members of the NRC also agreed that the
financial performance of the Company over the years is satisfactory and the

Board as whole played great role in the development of the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Board of the Company has adopted the Risk Management Policy based
on the recommendation of the Risk Management Committee in order to
assess, monitor and manage risk throughout the Company. Risk is an
integral part of the Company’s business, and sound risk management is
critical to the success of the organisation. Detailed information on risk

management is provided separately in this Annual Report.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules 2014, the
Company has established the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
(CSR Committee) and the composition and the function thereof is mentioned

in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Board adopted the CSR Policy, formulated and recommended by the

CSR Committee, and the same is available on the Company’s website.

During the year, as per the budget the Company spent on various programs
and activities such as Skill Development & Education, Eco- Sustainability,
Women Welfare & Awareness and Natural Disaster Relief. The details of the
CSR activities undertaken during the year are given in the report on
Corporate Social Responsibility activities which is annexed as Annexure II

to the Directors’ Report.
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DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL 0RDE!AMS;L’E%M%NT%%MW
REGULATORS ORCOURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING
CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANYOPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts or

Tribunals which would impact the going concern status of the Company and

its future operations.

DEPOSITS

The Company is a non-deposit taking NBFC-MFI and has not accepted any
deposit as defined by the Companies Act, 2013,

INFORMATION REQUIRED UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN
AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL) ACT,
2013

Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent,
contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. During the
financial year no complaints of sexual harassment was recorded by the

Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements. During the year, such controls were tested
and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or operation were

observed.

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has a Whistle-blower Policy which is periodically reviewed,
and details of the same are explained in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Policy is also available on the Company’s website.

PARTICIPATION IN CREDIT BUREAU
In order to address the issue of multiple lending or over indebtedness and

—
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member in all the credit bureaus namely Experiaﬁ Credit ‘Thformation
Company of India Private Ltd, High Mark Credit Information Services Pvt.
Ltd., Equifax Credit Information Services Pvt. Ltd., and Transunion CIBIL

Limited and shares all the customer’s data to them on regular basis.

RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

Your Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit Accepting NBFC
is subject to the capital adequacy requirements prescribed by the Reserve
Bank of India. The Company was required to maintain a minimum Capital
to Risk Asset Ratio (CRAR) of 15% as prescribed under the Non-Banking
Financial Company-Micro Finance Institutions (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016 (as amended from time to time) based on total capital to risk weighted
assets. Your Company maintained a CRAR ratio higher than the RBI
prescribed ratio, which is 20.05% as on March 31, 20109.

The Company has outstanding on secured and unsecured borrowings of INR

2953.74 crores at the end of financial year 2018-19.

RBI GUIDELINES & SRO

Your Company is registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI), as a non-
deposit accepting NBFC (“NBFC-ND-SI”) under Section 45-IA of the RBI Act,
1934. As per Non-Banking Finance Companies RBI Directions, 1998, the
Directors hereby report that the Company did not accept any public deposits
during the year and did not have any public deposits outstanding at the end
of the year. The Company being the member of two SROs — MFIN and
SADHAN, follows the Code of Conduct as prescribed by these SROs. The

Company also complies with the standards and rules as prescribed by the

above SROs from time to time.

)
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s
remuneration and other details in terms of Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, have been

annexed herewith as Annexure III to the Directors’ Report.

The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Rules
5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided in a separate annexure
forming part of the Directors’ Report. In terms of Section 136 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Directors’ Report and the Accounts are being sent
to the Members excluding the aforesaid annexure and the same is open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. A copy of the statement

may be obtained by the Members, by writing to the Company Secretary of
the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company strives to adopt and adhere to the highest standards of
Corporate Governance principles and best practices. With this objective the
Company has put in place various policies, systems and processes to
achieve transparency, high levels of business ethics and compliance with
applicable laws. The Board & other Sub Committee Board ensures the high
standards of transparency and accountability in all its activities. The best
management practices and a high level of integrity in decision making are
followed to ensure long term creation of value for all the stakeholders.

A complete Corporate Governance Report is attached with the Directors’

Report and annexed as Annexure IV.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN (ESOP)
Presently Employee Stock Option Plan, 2017 and Employee Stock Option
Plan 2018 both are in force. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee

of the Board of Directors of the Company administer and monitor the
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Employee Stock Option Scheme of the Company in acco cfance w%"

applicable law.

The details of the Employee Stock Option Scheme as per Rule 12(9) of the

Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

Particulars

Archan ESQP Plan 2018

Archan ESOP Plan 2017

a. | Options granted 5,97,264 2,29,280
b. | Options vested 5,97,264 2,29,280
¢. | Options exercised Nil Nil
d. | The total number of shares | Nil Nil
arising as a result of exercise
of options
e. | Options lapsed 54,000 14,244
f. | The exercise price INR 130/- INR 84.70/-
g. | Variation of terms of options No No
h. | Money realized by exercise of | Nil Nil
options 5
i. | Total number of options in 5,43,264 2,43,524
force
j. | Employee wise details of
options granted to:
a) Key Managerial Personnel | 2,43,324 50,000

b) any other cmployee who Mame of | Options Name of | Options
. . Employee granted Employee granted
receiwves a grant of options
i | Shailesh 44,800 Harsh 17,280
in any one year of option o o
amounting to five percent | [eursh 49,500 Shraddha | 30,000
or more of options granted || Chandra Stimal
. . Panda Anant 24,000
during that year; and Tlarsh 34,560 Jayant
Patnaik Natu
Abin 32,400 Abin 24,000
Mulkhopad Mukhopad
hyaya hyaya
Joji Jacob 26,000 Prashant 30,000
Rai
Joyanlta 30,060 Joyanta 30,000
Bakali Bakali
c) identified employees who
were granted option,
during any one year, equal
to or exceeding one percent
of the issued -capital Nil Nil
(excluding outstanding

warrants and conversions)
of the company at the time
of grant;
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EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AAVISHKAAR - INTELLECAP ENTERPRISE

Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(a) and Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act
2013, read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the Annual Return as on March

31, 2019 in form MGT 9 has been annexed as Annexure V to the Directors’
Report.
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 318T MARCH, 2019

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

The Members,

AROHAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
PTI Building, 4th Floor,

DP-9, Sector-5, Salt Lake

Kolkata — 700091

CIN- U74140WB1991PLC053189

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Arohan
Financial Services Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial
Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books and Papers, Minutes books,
Forms and Returns filed and other records maintained by the company Arohan
Financial Services Limited, and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2019 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also
that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in

place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:
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We have examined the Books and Papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and
other records maintained by Arohan Financial Services Limited for the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2019 to the extent applicable:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(i) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there
under - Not Applicable during the year under review.

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under.

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings.

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 : - Not Applicable during the year under
review.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992: - Not Applicable during the year under review.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2009: - Not Applicable during the year under
review.

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 to the extent
applicable.

(€) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008.

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing
with client; - Not Applicable during the year under review.

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009: - Not Applicable during the year under review
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(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998: - Not Applicable during the year under review.

We further report that after considering the Compliance system prevailing in the
Company and after verification of relevant records and documents maintained by the
Company and as confirmed by the management vide its management representation

letter, it has complied with following laws that are applicable specifically to the
Company:

1. The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

2. The Non - Banking Financial Company - Micro Finance Institution (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2011 read with Master Circular.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with regards to Meeting of Board of Directors (88-1) and

Gencral Meeting (88-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
(ICSl).

(ii) The Company has made an application to Bombay Stock Exchange Limited seeking
in — principal approval for issue of 3,50,00,000 nos. ( Three Crore Fifty Lacs)
Unsecured, Subordinated, Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non — Convertible Debenture
of face value of Rs. 10/- each, aggregating to Rs. 35 Crores on private Placement

on 16t August, 2018 and the same has been granted vide notice no. 20180829-8
dated 29tk August, 2018.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, ctc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

2. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

3. Majority decision of the Board and Committee Meetings are carried through, while

the dissenting members’ views, if any are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes.
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On the basis of information provided to us, we further report that there are adequate
systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of

the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

On the basis of information provided to us, we further report the Company has during
the audit period ending on 31st March, 2019:-

e Issued & allotted 6,00,000 nos. ( Six Lacs ) of equity shares of the company at Rs.
10/- at a premium of Rs. 120.00 each to Archan ESOP Trust. dated 03.07.2018.

e Issued 3,50,00,000 nos. ( Three Crore Fifty Lacs ) of Debentures of face value of
Rs. 10/- each on placement basis, listed and admitted to dealings on Bombay
Stock Exchange Limited in the List of F Group - Debt Instruments on 14th
August,, 2018.

s Redemption of 581 nos. of NCD bearing ISIN No. INES80O8KO07022 being List of F
Group - Debt Instruments on 13.11.2018 on maturity.

s Redemption of 330 nos. of NCD bearing ISIN No. INESO8K07105 being List of F
Group - Debt Instruments on 18.12.2018 by exercising call option.

e Issued & allotted 1,02,17,288 nos. ( One Crore Two Lacs Seventeen Thousand
two Hundred and eighty eight ) of equity shares of the company at Rs. 10/- at a
premium of Rs. 136.81 each by way preferential allotment dated 28.12.2018.

e Redemption of 200 nos. of NCD bearing ISIN No. INE808K07113 being List of F
Group - Debt Instruments on 27.01.2019 by exercising put option.

e Issued & allotted 26,41,275 nos. ( Twenty six Lacs forty one thousand two
hundred seventy five ) of equity shares of the company at Rs. 10/- at a premium of
Rs. 152.80 each by way placements basis dated 26.03.2019.

e Issued & allotted 7,50,000 nos. ( Seven Lacs Fifty thousand ) of equity shares of

the company at Rs. 10/- at a premium of Rs. 152.80 each to Arohan ESOP Trust.
dated 28.03.2019.

e Re-appointed M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP as statutory auditor of the
Company at the Annual general Meeting of the company held on 15 May, 2018.

« There was change in composition of Board of directors of the company in
compliance with the requirement of RBI and other statute.
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¢ Various fraud cases which have been reported to us were also noted in the
Minutes of the Board Meeting for which necessary actions are taken by the
company and as reported to us that these type of cases are inevitable depending
on the nature and volume of the business and further it was made us understand

that necessary actions are taken by the Management of the Company as and when
required.

For Jayshri Tulsyan & Associates
Pr. Company Secretaries

M. No. - 7725

C.P. No. - 8056
Date: 07/05/2019

Place: Kolkata
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To,

The Members,

AROHAN FINANCIAL SERVICES LIMITED
PTI Building, 4th Floor,

DP-9, Sector-5, Salt Lake

Kolkata — 700091

CIN U74140WB1991PTC053189

Qur Secretarial Audit Report is to be read along with this letter

. Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the Management of

the Company. Our Responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial
Records based on our audit.

. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to

obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes
and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records

and books of accounts of the company as it is a part of Financial Audit as per
the provisions of The Companies Act, 2013.

. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about

the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,

regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on random test basis.

. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of

the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the company.

For Jayshri Tulsyan & Associates
Pr. Company Secretaries

M. No. - 7725
C.P. No. - 8096

Date : 07/05/2019 73! Sepy

Place : Kolkata /. “ \\%\\"i-
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A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or programs:

Arohan Financial Services Limited (hereinafter referred to as Arohan) believes that a
business entity’s performance must be measured by its economic, social and
environmental impact and efforts to embed sustainability. Social enterprises are more
than any other business enterprise, capable of addressing these concerns and Arohan
aspires to transcend business interests and work toward the all round human
development of the communities we operate in through initiating and supporting
programmes that enhance social sustainability. Arohan already serves people from
economically and socially marginalised communities where illiteracy, unemployment
and under-employment are rampant. It is in this social context that our CSR
initiatives are developed to best cater to our customers and their communities.
Arohan would build on this connect with the marginalised sections of the society for
furthering their welfare. These programmes are independent of the normal conduct of
business and are not viewed as business propositions by Arohan. In alignment to
Arohan’s mission to empower the underserved, we see Corporate Social Responsibility
(hereinafter referred to as CSR) as an opportunity to further extend help to the

underserved in the larger community through the provision of non- profit based
assistance.

The CSR Policy is disclosed on our website in the link below:
https:/ /www.arohan.in/social_responsibility/20 18-06-14-13-09-33-CSR%20Policy.pdf

The disclosure of the contents of the CSR Policy pursuant to Section 134(3)(o) of the
Companies Act 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility)
Rules, 2014, are as follows:

Sl. No. Particulars Remarks
1 The composition of the CSR Committee 1. Sumantra Banerjee-
Independent Director
(Chairman)
2. Anurag Agrawal-
Director

3. Manoj Kumar Naray
Nambiar- Managing

an

Director
4, Prashant Rai-
Management
Coordinator
2 Average net profit of the company for last three
financial years (15-16, 16-17, 17-18) INR 599,80,92,518:09
3 Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the INR 79,73,850.37
amount as in item 3 above)
-+ Details of CSR spent during the financial year
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year INR 79,73,850.37 i)
(b) Amount unspent, if any Nil
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the | Table below
financial year is detailed below
o,
5 In case the company has failed to spend the two | Not Applicable K-C'J/JLHH:
] percent of the average net profit of the last three ([:;;*‘fK fkata
s ! financial years or any part thereof, the company shall 1%\ 700 05 |:-
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provide the reasons for not spending the amount in
its Board report.

[ vl 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl Activity and | Sector Area Amount Amount Cumulative Amount
No | beneficiaries Outlay spent on the | expenditure Spent Direct
{(in INR) Projects or up to the or through
Programme reporting Implementing
Sub Heads: period Agency
(1) Direct (in INR)
(in INR)
Darjeeling,
il Siliguri, Ranchi
T 45 _ . ;
:Tr:ﬁmrg Skill Jamshedpur, NSHM Udaan
TR o LA Development | Lucknow, 23,22,500 23,22,500 23,22,500 | Skills
marginalized : i
o and Education | Bhubaneswar, Foundation
communities
Kolkata,
Guwahati
Educational gl 8 districts in
2 : Development : 10,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 :
Aid : Bihar Going to School
and Education
:I:f’k:i'; skill Hazaribagh il
3 ‘ Development | district of 5,25,000 5,25,000 5,25,000 L
Scholarship to : Foundation
: and Education | Jharkhand
girl students
Vidya skill
| Eholarhipto. | Development. || Laar Pradesh 90,000 90,000 90,000 | Directly
; ; and Odisha
E girl students and Education
School Bag
distribution to | Skill tﬁ'z: 3?:§Z:h
5 students in Development Aasarr and f 2,899,795 2,99,795 2,99,795 | Directly
Government and Education ;
Odisha
schools
Library & Al Hazaribagh Swaraj
6 Development H 2,99,775 2,99,775 2,99,775 '
Computer Lab : Jharkhand Foundation
and Education
Skill Swaraj
gAmadely A DevsinEient .| TArKhne and 6,77,250 6,77,250 6,77,250 | Foundation
Anganwadi L Bihar
and Education
BVHA, Bondhu,
Women's WB, Bihar, ng:‘l?\?
¢ | Healthcamps | Empowerment | Jharkhand, 4,87,126 4,87,126 4,87,126 Y
Health and
and Health Assam
Satarupa
Samajik Samiti
Water o South Asian
Sanitation and | Eco- Holgl, Susom Forum for
9 ; . = and Purulia, 13,45,000 13,45,000 13,45,000 ;
Hygiene for Sustainability WE Environment
Urban Poor
Sponsorship Scamper ‘1
for Green Eco- e Technologies
2 24 2 4
H Tripura Sustainability THRAE RAZE 254 5424 | o 1d services
campaign Pvt. Ltd.
|q1 | Floodrelief 4 pcacter Relief | Agartala 131,202 1,31,202 1,31,202 | Directly
material %z N
T \\.\ | i
A Impact Gyerall 3,97,492 3,097,493 | [novaie
Assessment projects Financial
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Advisors Pvt.
Ltd.
NGO visits,
Drawing
Employee competition,
13 Volunteering Prize 58,225 58,225 58,225 | Directly
Initiatives distribution,
Women's Day
celebration
TOTAL 7,658,789 7,658,789 7,658,789

The total administrative expense of the Company for the above CSR activity was INR 3,15,061.37/-

The implementing and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR

objective and policy of the Company.

Sd/-

Manoj Kumar Narayan Nambiar

Managing Director
DIN- 03172919

Sd/-

Sumantra Banerjee
Chairman, CSR Committee
DIN- 00075243
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Remuneration details of Directors, KMPs, Employees

Sl1. No

Particulars

Disclosures

1

The ratio of the remuneration of each
Whole-Time director to the median
remuneration of the employees of the
company for the financial year

7@

The percentage increase in
remuneration of each Director, Chief
Financial Officer, Chief Executive
Qfficer;, Company ' /Secretary. . .or
Manager, if any, in the financial year

KMP % increase in

remuneration

MD 24.31%

CFO 19.04%

CS 121.39%*

* Percentage increase in Company
Secretary’s salary is on higher side
since he was employed from part of
the financial year, i.e. for FY 2017-18

The percentage increase in the median
remuneration of employees in the
financial year

25%

The number of permanent employees
on the rolls of the Company

4,765 employees as on March 31,
2019

o

The explanation on the relationship
between average increase in
remuneration company
performance

and

The Company made a growth of
277.79% in its Net Profit and
increased the remuneration of its
employees by an average of 25%
based on the recommendation of
the NRC Committee of the Board.

Comparison of the remuneration of
the Key Managerial Personnel against
the performance of the company

The Company’s revenue and Net
Profit has grown by 94.07% and
277.78% respectively in FY 2018-
19 in comparison to FY 2017-18.

The average increase in
remuneration of KMP in the FY
2018-19 was 34.38%.

| the

Variations in the market capitalization
of the company, price earnings ratio
as at the closing date of the current
financial year and previous financial
year and percentage increase over
decrease in the market quotations of
shares of the company in
comparison to the rate at which the
company came oul with the last
public offer in case of

listed-

As on March 31, 20109, the

Company’s equity shares were not
listed.

The Company’s net worth has
increased from INR 379.85 Cr as
on March 31, 2018 to INR 681.22
Cr as on March 31, 2019 — an
increase by INR 301.37 Cr.

I,

companies, and in case of unlfatédSe\,
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companies, the variations in the net
worth of the company as at the close
of the current f{inancial year and
previous financial year

Average percentile increase already
made in the salaries of employees
other than the managerial personnel
in the last financial year and its
comparison with the

percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof
and point out if there are any
exceptional circumstances for increase
in the managerial remuneration

The average increase in the
salaries of employees was 19.23%
and the average increase in the
managerial remuneration was -
34.38%

Comparison of the each remuneration
of the Key Managerial Personnel
against the performance of the
Company

The Company’s revenue and Net
Profit has grown by 94.07% and
277.78% respectively in FY 2018-
19 in comparison to FY 2017-18.

The average increase in
remuneration of KMP in the FY
2018-19 was 34.89 %.

10

The key parameters for any variable
component of remuneration availed by
the Directors

Yearly incentive as per
employment terms based on the
company’s performance  and
profits

11

The ratio of the remuneration of the
highest paid director to that of the
employees who arc not directors but
receive remuneration in excess of the
highest paid director during the year

No employee received
remuneration in excess of the
highest paid director.

iz

Affirmation that the remuneration is
as per the remuneration policy of the
company

Yes.
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A statement showing the name of every employee of the Company, who -

a) If employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for
that year which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore two lakh

rupees;

Mr. Manoj Kumar Nambiar — Managing Director

Sl No | Particulars _Details
1 Designation Managing Director
2 Remuneration received INR 139.84 Lakhs
3 Nature of employment, Permanent
whether contractual or
otherwise
4 Qualification and Experience

Manoj completed his mechanical
engineering from VJTI in 1986, and his
MBA in Marketing from JBIMS in 1988,
both from Mumbai University and has
tertiary qualifications in insurance from
Insurance Institute of India. He has also
completed the “Strategic Leadership in
Microfinance” course from the Harvard
Business School, Boston, US in April ‘13.

He started his working career with Modi
Xerox in 1988 and then moved into
consumer financial services with GE
Countrywide in 1995, retail banking with
ANZ Grindlays in 1997 and retail assets
& business development with ABN Amro
Bank NV India in 2000. He moved as
Head Retail Banking of National Bank of
Oman in 2002 looking after Oman, UAE
& Egypt. Post that he worked as the Chief
Operating Officer of the Alhamrani -
Nissan Finance company, KSA in 2004
and returned to Oman as the Dy CEO of
Ahli Bank SAOG in 2008. Growing the
retail business for NBO, raising of US$
100Mn in the first Islamic Musharaka
offshore deal for Alhamrani Finance
Company & transformation of the
mortgage company into a full fledged
commercial bank with retail, premium
and private banking are some of the key
achisvements.

He returned to India in Jun’10 as MD &
CEO of Intellecash Microfinance Network
Company (P) Limited (an Intellecap |

/- 2 \ —ltefd.
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Group company)in the business of
incubating & capacity building of MFIs.
In this job, he set up the lending
businesses in both the retail & wholesale
(this is today a separate company called
IntelleGrow) space and also grew the
capacity building business both in India
& overseas. In Sep’l2, backed by
Aavishkaar Goodwell, IntelleCash
acquired a 56% stake in Arohan with
additional investments from India
Financial inclusion Fund and Michael
Susan Dell Foundation using the parent
Intellecap’s structuring skills.

5 Date of commencement of September 28, 2012
employment

6 Age 54

7 The last employment held Ahli Bank, SAOG

8 % of equity shares held NIL

b) if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for
any part of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than
eight lakh fifty thousand rupees per month;

Nil

if employed throughout the financial year or part therecf, was in receipt of
remuneration in that year which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at
a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the managing
director or whole-time director or manager and holds by himself or along
with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the

equity shares of the company.

Nil
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Arohan believes and strives to adopt and adhere to the highest standards of Corporate
Governance principles and best practices. With this objective the organisation has put in
place various policies, systems and processes to achieve transparency, business ethics and
compliance with applicable laws. The Company is dedicated and committed to ensure
high standards of transparency and accountability in all its activities. To this effect, the

best management practices and high level of integrity in decision making are followed to
ensure creation of value for all its stakeholders.

In India, corporate governance standards for listed companies are also mandated under the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”). In addition to the above,
corporate governance standards for Non-Banking Finance Companies are also prescribed
by the Reserve Bank of India. To align corporate governance standards with the provisions
of Companies Act 2013, SEBI through notifications dated May 25, 2016, May 27, 2016 and
January 4, 2017 had revised the SEBI LODR Regulations and mandated listed companies

to comply with the same. Corporate Governance Framework

The driving principle of our corporate governance framework are encapsulated in the

following diagram
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Governance Structure

The corporate governance framework at Arohan is based on an effective and independent
Board, the separation of the Board’s supervisory role from the executive management and
the constitution of Board Committees to oversee critical areas, all of which are chaired by
Independent Directors. The Company has an appropriate mix of Executive and

Independent Directors to maintain the Independence of the Board.

Arohan’s Corporate Governance structure, systems and processes are based on two core
principles, viz., (a) management must have the executive freedom to drive the enterprise
forward without undue restraints, and (b) this freedom of management should be exercised

within a framework of effective accountability.

Apart from the shareholders of the Company, the following governance level is {ollowed in

Arohan:

Level 1 Strategic Supervision Board of Directors
Strategic ;
Level 2 Executive Committee
Management
Executive
Level 3 Heads of Departments
Management

At the apex level, the general body of Shareholders of the Company elect the Board of
Directors at the Annual General Meeting and the Board appoints the Key Managerial
Personnels with the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
other functional heads of the Company, who in turn will appoint the various other

management executives of the Company.

/ () b o 4, B
a:fif!" Kolkata ' "_
1\.\95\ 700 U8 1 /5]

\SoN




Annexure IV

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition and category of the Board

The Company has a broad-based Board of Directors, constituted in compliance with the
Section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934 and Companies Act, 2013, and in accordance with good
corporate governance practices. The Company recognizes and embraces the importance of
a diverse Board and strongly believes that a diverse Board will leverage differences in
thought, perspective, knowledge, skill, industry experience and age, which will help us
retain and maximize our competitive advantage. The Board functions either as a full Board
or through various committees constituted to over- see specific operational areas. As on
March 31, 2019, the Company’s Board comprises of twelve (12) Directors and one (1)
Alternate Director, four (4) Independent Directors out of which includes one (1) Women

Director, one (1) Managing Director, five (5) Nominee Directors and two (2) Promoter

Directors

During the year under review, the Board met seven (7) times on April 27, 2018, August 3,
2018, October 1, 2018, November 12, 2018, January 24, 2019, February 18, 2019 and
March 13, 2019. The interval between the two meetings was well within the maximum

period mentioned under Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The names of the members of the Board, their status, their attendance at the Board
Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting (“AGM”), number of other Directorships and

Committee membership(s)/ chairmanship(s) of each Director are as under:

I'sL

Name of the

No. of

Category of No. of Whether | No. of No. of other | No. of
No. | Director Directors meetings | meetings | attended| other Board Chairman-
held in FY| attended last AGM| Directors- | Committee ship of
18 (including | (May 15, | ship held | Memberships | other
through 2018) in other Board
electronic public Committee
mode in FY companies s
18)
1. | Mr. Manoj | Managing Seven Seven Yes Two Three One
Kumar Director
Nambiar
/;»”/‘J = s@% \
! {.’;r!’; Kolkata :f))
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2. | Mr. Anurag| Director Seven Six No Six Three Nil
Agrawal
3. | Mr. Vineet Director Seven Six No Eight Two Nil
Chandra
Badess
4. | Mr. Dinesh| Independent | Seven Five No Twelve Nil Nil
Kumar Director
Mittal
5. | Mr. Independent | Seven Three No Three Five Two
Sumantra | Director
Banerjee _
6. | Mr. Rajat | Independent | Seven Five Yes One Three Two
Mohan Nag| Director
7. | Ms Independent | Seven Six No Four Three One
Matangi Director
Gowrishan
kar
8. | Mr. Piyush | Nominee Seven Seven No One Four Nil
Goenka Director
9. | Mr. Kasper | Nominee Seven One No Three Nil Nil
Svarrer Director
10. | Mr. Nomine Seven Five No Nil Two Nil
Wilhelmus | Director
Martinus
Maria Van
Der Beek
11. | Mr. Nominee Seven Nil No One Nil Nil
Prakash Director
Kumar ©
12 | Mr. K.C. Nominee Seven Four No One Nil Nil
Vaid Director
13. | Mr. Paul Nominee Seven Nil - No Six Nil Nil
Gratien Director
Robine 7
14. | Mr. David | Alternate Seven Three No Three Nil Nil
B RS
PASEION
[/ 2 NGAN




Annexure IV

Arturo Director
Paradiso 8
1. None of the Directors held directorships in more than ten (10) public limited companies;
2. None of the Directors is related to any Director or is & member of an extended family;
3. None of the employees of the Company is related to any of the Directors:
4. None of the employees of the Company is related to any of the Directors:
5. None of the Directors has received any loans or advances from the Company during the year.
6. Mr. K.C. Vaid was replaced by Mr. Prakash Kumar as per SIDBI Act, 1990 as a Nominee Director of the
Company w.e.f. 24.01.2019.
7. Mr. Paul Gratien Robine was appointed as a Nominee Director of TR Capital III Mauritius w.e.l,
18.03.2019.
8. Mr. David Arturo Paradiso was appointed as an Alternate Director to Mr. Kasper Svarrer, Nominee

Director of Maj Invest Financial Inclusion Fund Il K/S w.e.f. 24.01.2019.

Board Member Evaluation

One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the Board evaluation

framework. The Board works with the nomination and remuneration committee to lay down

the evaluation criteria for the performance of the Board, including the Executives,

Non-executives, Independent Directors and Nominee Directors through a peer evaluation,

excluding the director being evaluated. Some of the performance indicators based on which

the directors were evaluated include:

N oo s e N e

Participation in the meeting.

Value addition

Time devoted to analyse and examine governance and compliance issues
Compliance with Law and relevant standards.

Effectiveness of Governance.

Risk Evaluation.

Independence of management from Board

Committee of the Board- Composition as on March 31, 2019,

1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the Board in dissemination of financial information and in

overseeing the financial and accounting processes in the Company. The terms of the
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reference of the Audit Committe¢ covers all matters specified in section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The terms of the reference broadly include review of internal audit
reports and action taken reports, assessment of the efficacy of the internal control
systems/financial reporting systems and reviewing of the adequacy of the financial policies
and practices followed by the Company. The Audit Committee also looks after compliance
with the legal and statutory requirements, the quarterly and annual financial statements
and related party transactions and reports its finding to the Board. The Committee also
recommends the appointment of statutory auditor to the Board. The Committee also looks

into those matters specifically referred to it by the Board.

Composition:

<+ Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag, Chairman

<% Mr. Sumantra Banerjee, Member

¢ Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar, Member
#» Mr. Piyush Goenka, Member

< Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Member

As on March 31, 2019 the Committee comprised of three (3) Independent Directors, one (1)
Nominee Director and one (1) Promoter Director, all of whom are financially literate and
have relevant finance exposure. The Managing Director, the Chief Financial Officer and
Head- Internal Audit are the permanent invitees to the meetings of the Committee. The
other directors are invited to attend the Audit Committee meetings as and when required.
The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Committee. The Audit Committee met
five (5) times during the year on April 27, 2018, August 3, 2018, November 12, 2018,

January 23, 2019 and February 18, 2019. The time gap between any two meetings was less
than four (4) months.

Attendance of Directors:

Name of the Member Position No. of | No. of
Meetings Held | Meetings
Attended
Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag Independent Director S 3
Mr. Sumantra Banerjee Independent Dircctor 5 3

,f’f ~ ‘\'_\.‘
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Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar | Independent Director 5 3
Mr. Piyush Goenka Nominee Director 5 5
Mr. Anurag Agrawal Director 5 5

The Chief Financial Officer, who is responsible for the finance function, the Head of Internal
Audit and the representative of the Statutory Auditors, are regularly invited to attend

meetings of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Audit
Committee.

2. Risk Management Committee

Periodic assessment to identify the risk areas are carried out and management is briefed on
the risks in advance to enable the Company to control risk through a properly defined plan.
The risks are taken into account while preparing the annual business plan for the
Company. The Board is periodically informed of the business risk and actions taken to
manage them. The Company has in place a risk management policy which provides an

overview of the principles of the risk management of the company.

Composition:

% Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag, Chairman

%+ Mr. Sumantra Banerjee, Member

% Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar, Member

“ Mr. Piyush Goenka, Member

%  Mr. Wilhelmus Marthinus Maria Van Der Beek, Member

As on March 31, 2019 the Committee comprised of three (3) Independent Directors and two
(2) Nominee Directors. The Managing Director, the Chief Financial Officer and Head of Risk
are the permanent invitees to the meetings of the committee. The other directors are invited
to attend the Risk Committee meetings as when required. The Company Secretary acts as
the secretary to the Committee. The Risk Committee met four (4) times during the year on

April 27, 2018, August 3, 2018, November 12, 2018 and February 18, 20 19.

Attendance of Directors:
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| Name of the Member Position No. of No. of
Meetings Held | Meetings
Atlended
Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag Independent Director 4 3
Mr. Sumantra Banerjee Independent Director 4 3
Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar | Independent Director 4 3
Mr. Piyush Goenka Nominee Director 4 4
Mr. Wilhelmus Marthinus | Nominee Director 4 0
Maria Van Der Beek
= - - | il

3. Nomination & Remuneration Committee (Erstwhile HR and Compensation

Committee)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee functions in accordance with section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013, and the functions also includes recommending to the Board the
quantum of remuneration (including performance bonuses and incentives) payable to
employees and recommending of grant of ESOPs to employees of the Company along with
the Key Managerial Personnels. The Committee is headed by an Independent Director.
Other responsibilities include helping managing and advising on appropriate organisation
structure, review and approve HR policies, oversee employee engagement, and training
programs and any other HR related issues. During the period under review the HR &
Compensation Committee (HR Committee) was merged with this Committee, since both
committees’ works on a similar subject. The HR Committee met two times pre-merger with

this Committee on April 27, 2018 and August 3, 2018.
Composition:

% Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar, Chairman

% Mr. Sumantra Banerjee, Member

% Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag, Member
4 Mr. Piyush Goenka, Member
& Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Member
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As on March 31, 2019 the Committee comprised of three (3) Independent Directors, one (1)

Nominee Director and one (1) Promoter Director. The Managing Director, Chief Financial

Officer and the HR Head are the permanent invitees to the meetings of the Committee. The

other directors are invited to attend the Nomination & Remuneration Committee meetings

as and when required. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the Committee. The

Committee met four times during the year on, November 12, 2018 and February 18, 2019.

Attendance of Director (NRC):

Name of the Member

Position No. of | No. of
Meetings Held | Meetings
Attended
Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar | Independent Director 4 3
Mr. Sumantra Banerjee Independent Director & 3
Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag Independent Director 4 3
Mr. Piyush Goenka Nominee Director - 4
Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai Director 4 4
Attendance of Director (HR Committee)
Name of the Member Position No. of | No. of
Meetings Held | Meetings
Attended
Ms. Matangi Gowrishankar | Independent Director 2 2
Mr. Sumantra Banerjee Independent Director 2 1
Mr. Rajat Mohan Nag Independent Director 2 1
Mr. Piyush Goenka Nominee Director 2 2
Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai | Director 2 2




Annexure IV

4. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee monitors the overall CSR Activities of the
Company. It provides guidance on various areas where CSR activities can be carried out.

The Committee is headed by an Independent Director.

Composition:

< Mr. Sumantra Banerjee, Chairman
¢ Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Member
& Mr. Wilhelmus Marthinus Maria Van Der Beek, Member

% Mr. Manoj Kumar Narayan Nambiar, Member

As on March 31, 2019 the Committee comprised of one () Independent Director, one (1)
Promoter Director, one (1) Nominee Director and the Managing Director. The Chief
Financial Officer and Head- HR, Admin, CSR & Training is the permanent invitee to the
meetings of the Committee. The other directors are invited to attend the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee meetings as and when required. The Company Secretary acts as
the secretary to the Committee. The Committee met three (3] times during the year on April

27,2018, November 12, 2018 and on February 04, 2019.

Attendance of Director:

Name of the Member Position No. of | No. of

Meetings Held | Meetings
Attended

Mr. Sumantra Banerjee Independent Director 3 2

Mr. Anurag Agrawal Director 3 2

Mr. Wilhelmus Marthinus | Nominee Director S 0

Maria Van Der Bek

Mr. Manoj Kumar Nambiar | Managing Director 3 3
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5. Share Allotment and Securities Transfer Committee

The Share Allotment and Securities Transfer Committee of the Board is responsible for
ensuring that the shares allotment and transfer of the Company should be fit and proper as

per the guidelines of Companies Act, 2013.

Composition:

% Mr. Manoj Kumar Narayan Nambiar, Chairman
% Mr. Anurag Agrawal, Member

% Mr. Vineet Chandra Rai, Member
%+ Mr. Piyush Goenka, Member

As on March 31, 2019 the Committee comprised of Managing Director, one (1) Nominee
Director and two (2) Promoter Directors. The Chief Financial Officer is the permanent
invitee to the meetings of the committee. The other directors are invited to attend the Share
Allotment and Securities Transfer Committee meetings as and when required. The

Committee met five (5) times during the year on July 03, 2018, August 14, 2018, December
28, 2018, March 26, 2019 & March 28, 2019

Attendance of Director:

Name of the Member Position No. of | No. of

Meetings Held | Meetings
Attended

Mr. Manoj Kumar Narayan | Managing Director 5 2

Nambiar

Mr. Anurag Agrawal Director 5 4

Mr. Vineet Chand Rai Director 5 3

Mr. Pivush Goenka Nominee Director 5 2

6. IT Strategy Committee

NBFCs are required to form an IT Strategy Committee. The chairman of the committee shall

be an Independent Director. The IT Strategy Co
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frequency but not more than six months should elapse between two meetings. The
Committee shall work in partnership with other Board committees and Senior Management
to provide input to them. It will also carry out review and amend the IT strategies in line
with the corporate strategies, Board Policy reviews, cyber security arrangements and any

other matter related to IT Governance.

Composition:

# Mr. Sumantra Banerjee, Chairman
% Mr. Piyush Goenka, Member
# Mr. Manoj Kumar Narayan Nambiar, Member

< Mr. Arvind Murarka, Member

The Committee comprised of one Independent director, one investor or nominee director,
executive director and head of IT. The Chief Financial Officer and the Head- IT are the
permanent invitee to the meetings of the committee. The other directors are invited to
attend the IT Strategy Committee meetings as and when required. The Committee met three

(3) times during the year on April 26, 2018, November 12, 2018 and February 04, 2(}19

Attendance of Director:

[ Name of the Member Position No. of | No. of |
Meetings Held | Meetings
Attended
Mr. Sumantra Banerjee Independent Director 3 2
Mr. Piyush Goenka Nominee Director 3 2
Mr. Manoj Kumar Narayan | Managing Director 3 3
Nambiar
Mr. Arvind Murarka Head- IT 3 3
i
Vigil Mechanism

The Company has an established mechanism for Directors, Employees, Clients, Partners,
Investors or the Public at large to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud, and violation of the code of conduct or ethics policy. It also provides for

C
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adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors, Employees, Clients, Partners,
[nvestors who avail of the mechanism. The Company affirms that no personnel has been
denied access to the audit committee. The Company has formulated a policy of the vigil
mechanism that any personnel may raise reportable matters at an early date after
becoming aware of the same. To ensure the highest level of good governance, Arohan’s

overall whistleblower policy has been determined in accordance with the organisations’

core values,

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place a POSH Policy (Prevention of Sexual Harassment) in line with the
requirement of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent,

contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. The policy is also uploaded

on the website of the Company.
General Body Meetings:

Details of location and time, where last three Annual General Meetings held are given

below:

Financial Category | Location Date Time

Year

2017-2018 AGM Registered Office May 15, | 2:00 PM

2018

2016-2017 AGM Novotel, CF 11 Action Area 1C |August 29, |5:00 PM
Newtown, Rajarhat, Kolkata- | 2017
700156

2015-2016 AGM Novotel, CF 11 Action Area 1C | August 4,1 2:30 PM
Newtown, Rajarhat, Kolkata- | 2016
700156

Three (3) Extra Ordinary General Meetings of the Company was held on October 29, 2018, February
4, 2019 and March 18, 2019 at the registered office of the Company.

The following business items were approved by Special Resolution in the last three
AGMs, and were passed with the requisite majority: /.5 =N

s EA
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FY 2015-16:

FY 2016-17:

FY 2017-18:

1. Appointment of Matangi Gowrishankar as an Independent Director

2. Issue of Non-convertible Debenture

3. Increase in the Borrowing power and creation of charge

4. To obtain consent of shareholders to give effect of holding Company

restructuring.

1.Issue of Non-convertible Debentures

2. Regularization of Mr. Kasper Svarrer as a Nominee Director
3. Approval of Arohan ESOP Grant- 2017

4. Increase in the Borrowings power and creation of charge

5. Re-appointment of Managing Director

1. Approval for the change in the status of the Company to Pubic Company

2. Adoption of new/revised set of Articles of Association of the Company for
compliance of conversion into Public Company and Compliance with the
listing requirements of the Stock Exchanges.

3. Approval for the Initial Public Offer and the Issuance of Equity Shares in
the Initial Public Offer.

4. Increase in investment limits for Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPI)

5. Approval of the amendment in the “Arohan Employee Stock Option Plan
2010 as amended in 20177 (‘ESOP 2010/ “Plan”).

6. Approval of ‘Arohan Employee Stock Option Plan 20 18’

7. Increase Borrowing Power of the Company.

8. Creation of Charge and Providing Security.

9. Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures.

10. Payment to Independent Directors.

General Shareholders Information

Company Registration details

The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Kolkata, West Bengal and

operates in thirteen States in India at present, West Bengal, Assam, Bihar, Jharkhand,

Odisha, Meghalaya, Chattisgarh, Madhya Pradesh, Tripura, Uttar Pradesh, Maharashtra,

Karnataka and Telengana.

CIN: U74140WB1991PLC053189.
RBI registration no: B.05.02932.




Annexure IV

Annual General Meeting date, time and venue
Date and Time: August 5, 2019 and 11:00 AM
Venue: Registered Office of the Company

PTI Building, 4t Floor, DP Block, DP-9,
Sector-5, Salt Lake, Kolkata-700091

Financial Year: April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2019
Book Closure Date: July 29, 2019 to July 31, 2019 (both days inclusive)

Listing on Stock Exchange: The Company’s NCDs are listed on the Wholesale Debt
Market Segment of Bombay Stock Exchange.
Debenture Trustees:

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited
Office No-83-87,8t Floor, Asian Building, Ground Floor,
Mittal Tower, ‘B’ Wing, Nariman Point 17, R. Kamani Marg, Ballard Estate,
Mumbai- 400021 Mumbai — 400001.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: Members are requested to correspond with the
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents- Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. quoting their
folio no. / DP ID and Client ID at the following address:

Link Intime India Private Limited

Unit: Arohan Financial Services Limited

59C, Chowringhee Road, 34 Floor, Kolkata- 700020

Ph: 033 2289 0539, Mail: Kolkata@linkintime.co.in

Share Transfer System: Shares in physical forms are processed by the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent within 15 days from the date of receipt, if the documents are complete
in all respects. The Managing Director, Chicef Financial Officer and Company Secretary have
been severally empowered to approve transfers. With effect from 2nd October, 2018, request
for transfer of equity shares in physical form are not accepted as per notification issued by

Ministry of Corporate affairs dated 10® September, 2018.



Annexure V

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2019

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
; (_Management& Administration ) Rules, 2014,

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

U74140WB1991PLC053189

Registration Date

27-09-1991

Name of the Company

Arohan Financial Services Limited

iv Category/Sub-category of the Company NBFC- MFI
" Address of the Registered office PTI Building, 4th Floor,DP-9, Sector-5,
& contact details Salt Lake, kolkata
o Whether licted cormpany Unlisted (Debentures are listed in WDM
segment of BSE)
Link Intime India Private Limited , 58C,
i Name, Address & contact details of the Chowringhee Road, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. 700020 Ph no-033
2289 0540
Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated
SL No Name & Description of main products/ NIC Code of the | % to total turnover
services Product /service of the company
1 NBFC- MFI 64990 100%
1l PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
SI No Name & Address of the Company HOLDING/ % OF APPLICABLE
CIN/GLN SUBSIDIARY/ SHARES
SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD
1 Mot Applicable




v

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

‘Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year "% change during
A i 4 the year
Demat Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total
Shares Shares
A, Pr s
(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 0 0 9] 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Central Govt. or f !
State Govt. 0 0 0 a 1] 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corporates 9143320|  12354499| 21497819 24.30] 25453879 0| 25453879 24.79 0.49
d} Bank/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 9143320 12354499 21497819 24.30 25453879 0 25453879 24,79 0.49
(2) Foreign : - A5 v
a) NRI- Individuals o] 0 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0
b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
¢) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e} Any other 0 0 0 0 0 [ 0 0 0
SUB TOTAL: (A) (2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Shareholding of : |
Promoter 9143320 12354499 21497819 2430 25453879 0| 25453879 24,79 0.49
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)
B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Banks/Fl 0 Q 0 0 a 0 0 0 0
C) Cenntral govt 0 0 0 0 i 0 0 0 0
d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Venture Capital Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4]
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 "] 0 "] 1]
g) FliS 57580994 4973858 62554852 70.71 63844777 4] 63844777 62.18 -853
1) Foreign Venture :
Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
i) Others (specify) ] 0 0 0 0| 0 0! 0 0
SUB TOTAL (B){1): 57580994 4973858 62554852 70.71| 63844777 0| 63844777 62.18 -8.53
(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies carparates
1} Indian 0 0 0 0 7182603 0 7182603 7.00 7.00
ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders
heolding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1 lakhs 36182 4336 40518 0.05 48184 2334 50518 0.05 0.00
i) individuals shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs. 1
lakhs 2792963 1286185 4079148 4.61 4181851 395724 4577615 4,46 (.15
c) Others [specify)
Arohan ESOP Trust 293016 0 293016 0.33 1564524 0 1564524 1.52 1.19
SUB TOTAL (B}{2): 3122161 1290521 4412682 4.99 12977202 398058 13375260 13.03 8.04
Total Public Shareholding
{B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 60703155 6264379 66967534 7570 76821979 398058| 77220037 75.21 -0.49
C. Shares held by Custodian
for
GDRs & ADRs 0 Q ] 0 0 0 0 0 0.00
Grand Total (A+B+C) 69846475 18618878 B8465353 100.00| 102275858 398058| 102673916 100




{ii} SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS
sl No. shareholders Name shareholding at the Shareholding at the % change in share
beginning of the year end of the year holding during the
year
No.of shares | % of total shares % of shares No. of shares % of total shares % of shares
of the company pledged of the company pledged
encumbered to encumbered to
: ' total shares total shares
Aavishkaar Venture Management
L Services Private Limited 91,43,320 12 Y 1,30,99,380 1276 . ek
3 intellactual Capital Advisory Services o 3 o
Pvt Ltd 1,23,54,499 13.97 1,13,54,498% 12.03 :
Total 2,14,97,819 24.30 - 3,5!,53_,8‘;9 28.79 0.49
{iif) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING | SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)
1. No. " Share holding at the beginning of the | C ive Share holding during the
Year year
No.of Shares | % of total shares of|  No of shares % of total shares
the company of the company
favishkaar Venture M. t
5 services Private Limited AAAE 13y 1,30,99,380 12.76
Intellectual Capital Advisory Services
2 Pyt Ltd 1235499 i 1,23,54,499 12.03
Total 2,14,97,819 2431 2,54,53,879 24.73
fivh Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promaters & Holders of GDRS & ADRs)
5I. No Shareholding at the end of the year Cumulative Shareholding during the
year
For Each of the Top 10 Sharehalders No.of shares | % of total sharesof|  No of shares % of total shares
the company of the company
Aavishkaar Goodwell India
1 Microfi lop Comg
At the beginning of the year 18539529 20.96 18535528 20.96
Increase/ Decrease [ 0.00 [ [
Atthe end of the year 18539529 20.96 18539529 20.96
2 TANO India Private Equity Fund it
At the beginning of the year 16914279 19.12 16914279 19.12
Increase/ Decrease 0 0.00 ] 0.00
At the end of the year 16914279 19.12 16214279 19.12
3 Maj Invest Financial Inclusion Fund Il
K/S
At the beginning of the year 14541317 16,44 14541317 16.44
Increase; Decrease 259950 -1.44 858950 -1.44
At the end of the year 1,54,01,267 15.00 1,54,01,267 15.00
4 TR Capital Il Mauritius [
At the beginning of the year 9288747 10.50 9288747 1050
Increase/ Decrease 428975 -1.03 429975 -1.03
Al the end of the year §7,18,722 9.47 97,18,722 5.47
5 Michael & Susan Dell F i
At the beginning of the year 3270980 3.70 3270980 3.70
Increase/ Decrease 0 0.00 0 0.00
At the end of the year 3270980 3.70 3270380 3.70
[ Rajesh 5achdeva
Af the beginning of the year 2101219 238 2101219 2.38
Increase/ Decrease 4295975 0.09 428975 0.08
At the end of the year 25,31,194 247 25,31,194 247
7 Swaminathan Alyar
At the beginning of the year 677028 0.77 677028 0.77
Increase/ Necrease ] -0.11 a -0.11
At the end of the year 677028 0.66 677028 0.66
] Ajay Sharma j
At the heginning of the year 507000 0.57 507000 0.57
Increase/ Decrease o -0.08 0 -0.08
At the end of the year 507000 0.49 507000 0.49
E] Aavishkaar Capltal Advisors LLP
At the beginning of the year 0 0.00 o 000
Increase/ Decrease 7182603 7.00 7182603 7.00
At the end of the year 7182603 7.00 7182603 7.00
10 Jayesh Arvind Parekh
At the beginning of the year 172033 0.19 172033 0.1%
Increase/ Decrease Q -0.02 g £.02
At the end cf the year 172033 0.17 172033 0.17
) Shareholding of Directors & KMP
51, No Shargholding at the end of the year Cumulative Shareholcing during the
year
For Each of the Directors & KMP No.of shares | % of total sharesof|  No of shares % of total shares
the company of the company
1 Milind Ramchandra Nare
At the beginring of the year 10000 0.01 10000 0.01
Increase/ Decrease 0 ] 0 o
At the end of the year 10000 0.01 10000 0.01
2 Sumantra B il
Al the beginning cf the year 1] 1] Q
Increase/ Decrease 10000 0.01 10000
At the end of the year 10000 0.01 10000




v INDEBTEDNESS

There was ne Ities/punish

\ﬁl \.a ‘1
L

?;gﬂlmd-ﬂ\s matter was setteled thereaf.

Indebtedness of the Com includin interest outsta nding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans
Indebtness at the beginning of the financial
lyear
i} Ptincieal Amount 17,12,33,70,450 1,52,72,58,066 ] 18,65,06,28,516
il interest due but not paid 61,40,586 0 0 61,140,586
i} Interest accrued but not due 11,30,79,746 0 Q 11,30,79,746
Total {i+iiiii) 17,24,25,80,782 1,52,72,58,066 0 18.76,98.48,848
Change in Indebtedness during the financial A== } -
year
additions 1,02,50,75,40,723 1,98,66,54,321 [) 1,08,49,41,95,044
Reduction 91,83,57,63,121 1,66,29,75,766 0 93,49,87,38,887
Net Change 10,67,17,77,602 32,36,78,555 0 10,99,54,56,157
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i} Principal Amount 27,68,69,25,302 1,85,04,49,990 0 29,53,73,75,292
iil Interast due but not paid 78,60,945 Q 0 78,60,945
il Interest accrued but not due 21,95,82,137 4,86,631 0 22,00,68,768
L‘I;g_tli {i+ii+iii) 27.91,43,68,384 1,85,09,36,621 [} 29,76,53.05.005
Vi REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A, Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:
Name of the MD anager
Sk.No Particulars of Remuneration D WTD Total Amount
1 Gross salary Mano] Kumar Nambiar -
{a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1} of the
Incame Tax. 1961 1,39,84,899 1,39,84 859
(b} Value of perquisites /s 17(2) af the Income tax Act,
1961 - . s
{e ) Profits in lleu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 = ¥ 5 o
2 Stock option 150,000 options - - -
3 Sweat Equity = - - -
4 Commission as % of profit - - . -
5 Others, please specify - - - -
Total (A) 1,39,84,899 - = 1,39,84,899
Ceiling as per the Act 7.70,55,890
B. Remuneration to other directors:
Si.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors Total Amaunt
1 Independant Directors Matangi Gowrishankar | Sumantra Banerjee Rajat Mohan Nag Dinesh Kumar Mittal
[a) Fee for attending board committee meetings
4,40,000 4,00,000 4,00,000 2,00,00»9 14,840,000
{b) Ct s 15,00,000 10,00,000 10,00,000 25,00,000 60,00,000
|c ] Others, please specify - - - - -
Total [1) 19,40,000 14,00,000 14,00,000 27,00,000 74,40,000
2 Other Non Executive Directors Vineet Chandra Rai Anurag Agrawal
(2) Fee for attending - - - -
(b) Commission 25,00,000 15,00,000 - 40,00,000
[c ) Others, please specify. - - - -
Total (2) 75,00,000 15,00,000 . R 40,00,000
Total (B)={1+2) 44,40,000 13,00,000 14,00,000 27,00,000 1,14,40,000
Total Managerial Remuneration 44,40,000 29,00,000 14,00,000 27,00,000 1,14,40,000
Overal! Ceiling as per the Act, 1,54,11,178
C REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
Sl. No. Particulars of Rer i Key Managerial Personnel
Company
Secretary  Anlrudh
1 Gross Salary CEO singh G Thakur CFO Milind Nare
{a] Salary as per provisions contalned in section 17{1) of the
Incone Tax Act, 1361 55,73,857 82,05,789
|b) Value of perquisites us 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, o]
1861 & 2
(¢ | Frofits in liew of salary under section 17(3) of the Income -
Tax Act, 1961 4
2 Stack Option - 36,300 cptiors 57,024 aptions
3 Sweat Equity = H
4 [« as % of profit * -
others, specify z +
5 Others, please specify - =
Tatal 55,73,857 82,05,783
vl PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

P ding of offences under the Companies Act, 2013 for the year ending March 31, 2019. Hawever, the Company made an application of Compounding with the
Reserve Bank of India for its dala\md reporting of FDI received in Form FC GPR. The Compounding arder was passed by REl ur;w




FORM NO. AOC-2

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis
There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 315t March, 2019, which were not at arm’s length basis.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis

Name of Related Party Nature of Relationship | Duration of Contract | Date of approval of Board | Salient terms Amount in INR
Loan taken
1. Aavishkaar Venture Management Significant Influence FY - 2018-19 150,00,00,000

Services Pvt. Ltd.
Loan repaid

1. Jain Sons Finlease Ltd 2,68,08,076

2. bw&mr_&ma Venture Management Significant Influence FY - 2018-19 150,00,00,000

Services Pvt. Ltd. 24 January, 2019 .

Interest paid

w,. _ME mor:m ma,wmmﬂl&z Significant Influence FY - 2018-19 16,11,928
avishkaar Venture Management Ticabl 1

she e o Not Applicable 7519179

Professional/business support fee 5

1. Aavishkaar Venture Management | 3162738

Services Pvt Ltd.

2. Intellecap Advisory Services Pvt. Significant Influence FY - 2018-19

Ltd. 27t April, 2018 ©6,92,886

3. Tribetech Pvt. Ltd. 55,50,495

Reimbursement of expenses paid

1. Tribetech Pvt. Ltd. 3,02,960
3,70,795

9 Aavishkaar Venture Management |  Significant Influence FY -2018-19
Services Pvt Ltd.




3. Intellecap Advisory Services Pvt.
Ltd.

Reimbursement of expenses
received

1. Tribetech Pvt. Ltd.

2. Aavishkaar Venture Management
Services Pvt Ltd.

3. Intellecap Advisory Services Pvt.
Ltd.

Significant Infiuence

FY - 2018-19

2,63,013

4,25,000
2,51,339

57,600

Date: May 15, 2019
Place: Kolkata

For and on behal e Board of Directors




Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
10 € Hungerford Street
Sth Flaor, Kalkata 700017
Incia
independent Auditor’s Report

T +91 33 4050 8000

To the Members of Arohan Financial Services Limited (Formerly Arahan Financial Services
Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements |
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arohan Financial Sérvices Limited
(Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited) (‘the Company’), which comprise the Ralance
Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the

year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in india including Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act,
read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {as amended), of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducied our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibifities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAI'} together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled cur other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Chartered Accountants Walker Chandick & Co LLP is reglsterad with Fmited Rabdity

wilh identification mumber ARG-20B5 and s reglstered
Offices in Benzaluru. Chandizarh, Chennai. Gurugram. Hederabad. Kochi. Kolkate, Mumbai. Mew Delhi. Noida and Pune office at L-41 Connauatt Clrous. Mew Dethi, 110001, ndia



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Arohan Financial Services
Limited (Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited) on the financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2018 {Cont'd)

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in

our report.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Loan to customers - Existence

As at 31 March 2019, the gross loan to customers
comprises of 90%of the Company's assets. These
loans include loans to joint liability groups (JLG),
individuals, NBFCs and other retail loans (refer
Note 16 of Notes to Accounts of the Financial
Statements). Micro finance/retail loans are
disbursed by the Company through its Customer
Service Representatives ("CSR") spread across
613 branches as at 31 March 2018. Loans to other
NBFCsiCorporates are disbursed through head
office.

The criteria for disbursement of these Ioans is
based upon the qualifying asset norms as
prescribed under the Reserve Bank of India (‘the
REI') guidelines for sanction of loans, which
includes tenure of less than 24 months, loans to be

| extended towards income generation, assessing

that borrower should not be the member of more
than one JLG groups and having not borrowed
from more than 2 Micro Finance Institutions
('MFI1s’). These criteria are verified and accordingly
loan is disbursed after the approval of Centralised
KYC (Know Your Customer) checking platform
(called 'HUB") which has been set up by the
Company. Non-qualifying loans are approved after
credit evaluation by credit committee.

Additionally, in the current year approximately 23%
of the qualifying loan disbursements and entire
collections are in cash. The Company uses its
existing branch network inciuding the

CSRs/regional/head office to disburse and collect
cash.

As at 31 March 20189, loan to customers constitutes
significant part of total assets of the Company and
involves significant audit focus towards the inherent
susceptibility of cash transactions to fraud, and
thus, this matter has been identified as a key audit
matter for the current year audit.

Qur audit included, but were not limited to, the
following procedures:

Understanding of the process: Updated
our understanding of the process for loan
approvals, disbursement, collections of
repayment and other related activities, ta
identify any significant change in the
process,

Test of controls: The controls around
credit approval {'{HUB’ approvals) and cash
disbursements process were tested for
design and operating effectiveness.

Further, controls around day-end process of
cash management and banking were alsc
tested. The audit team also reviewed the
internal audit reports and testing conducted
by the management o assess the impact of
any observations therein on the audit,

Test of details: The sudit team, ona
sample basig, checked the loan application
forms, related KYC records, credit histery of
borrowers and evidence of adequate
approvals for disbursement of loans. The
audit teamn also conducted field visits and
performed the following audit procedures:
(i} for aselected sample, physically met
the customers, checked the loan cards
maintained by the customer for
collections recorded and balance
outstanding and traced the same to
the Company's records.

(ii) physical verification of ¢cash at
branches and ensured compliance of
Company's branch cash retention
policy,

(iif) for a selected sample, evaluated the
branch day-end reporting process
which includes reporting of closing
cash balances, cash collection and
cash disbursements. We zlso traced
the day-end cash balance from
manual registers and verified
necessary approvals of the area
manager approval for instances of
excess cash withholding,

Our results: Based on the above procedures,
the carmrying value of loans to customers as
outstanding as at 31 March 2019 appears to
be reasonable.

Chartered Accountanis




Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Arohan Financial Services
Limited (Formerly Arohan Financial Services Prlvate Limited) on the financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2019 (Cont’d)

Impairment of loans to customers - including
write offs (refer note 8 and 26)

The allowance for impairment of loans to customers
is censidered to be a matter of most significance as
it requires the application of judgement and use of
subjective assumptions by management.

The Company records both general and specific
allowances, on qualifying assets which is about
86% of the loans to customers outstanding, in
accordance with the RBI Master Direction DNBR.
PD. 008/03.10.118/2016-17 (‘RBI norms’), as
mentioned in note (i) of accounting policy given
under Note 3 to the.financial statements, and
assessment of qualitative factors on loan grading
respeclively. Any change in assumptions could
have a material impact on reported earnings.

Loans and advances other than qualifying loans
are provided for at the higher of management
estimates of future losses and provision required as
per the Master Direction — Non-Banking Financial
Company — Systemically Important Non-Deposit
taking Company and Deposit taking Company
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018.

As on 31 March 2019, the company has written off
porifolio loans, outstanding for more than 365 days
as &t that date, based on the management's
estimate of future probable losses.

In arriving at future losses management uses
assumptions relating to default risk and delay risk
across portfolios and across geographies in making
appropriate allowances for impairment.

Considering the significance of the above matter to
the financial statements and the significant auditor
attention required to test such complex accounting
estimates, we have identified this as a key audit
matter for current year audit.

Our audit included, but were not limited to, the
following procedures:

Understanding of the process: Updated our
understanding of the management process o
identify any impairment indicators that exist
with respect to outstanding loans to customers
as at year end and the process for
measurement of such impairment provisions,
where required.

Test of controls: Tested the design and
operating effectiveness of controls established
over monitoring and accounting for overdue
loans which include:

» [T application controis over the
identification and calculation of overdue
loans.

» [nternal controls around monitoring and.
recovering the overdue amounts

¢  Review controls around calculation and
creation of impairment provision

+ Govemance contrels relating to loan
downgrading, including the continuous re-
assessment of the appropriateness of
assumptions used in creating the
impairment allowance.

»  Controls over identification of early

mortality cases and provisions required
for such cases

Test of details: Key aspects of our testing
invalved the following procedures:

*  Tested classification of the overdue
accounts, on a sample basis

»  Tested information technology driven
extraction and calculation of provision,
ensuring compliance with the RBI norms
and management policies

»  Tested the historical accuracy of the
impairment provisions made in the prior
periods

+  0Onasample basis, tested the
reasonableness of future cash flows
projected for customers with past due
loans {impaired porifolio) by inspecting
the methodclogy and tracing it to source
documents such as past collection history
from such customers,

Our results: Based on above procedures, we
found the impairmeant allowances made for
loans to customers appear to be reasonable.

Charterad Accountants




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Arohan Financial Services
Limited (Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited) on the financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2019 (Cont’d)

Complex Information Technology {IT’)
environment:

The Company is dependent on their IT system (FIS
software) for recording customer’s operational data,
supporting their business processes, ensuring
complete and accurate processing of financial
transactions and supporting the overall internal
control framework. This system is maintained by
FIS Payment Solutions (“FIS") which acts as
technology pariner for implementing an end-to-end
banking solution, infrastructure and network
components, Their scope includes customer
information management, user management and
role-based access control. Many of the Company's
internal controls over financial reporting are
dependent on automated application level controls.
The completeness and integrity of the system
generated reports are dependent on appropriate
functioning of the IT systems.

FIS software is a complex [T system which runs on
a mobility platform and is used for recording all
disbursements and collections, identification and
tagging of pledged loans to customers and
calculating interest income and overdue days.
Currently, the Company has approximately 19 Lacs

customers, spread across 813 branches within
India.

Accordingly, considering the pervasive impact of
the IT system on the financial statements and
testing of such IT systems and related controls
being the most significant aspect of our audit
strategy, we have determined the same as a key
audit matter.

Our audit procedures included testing of IT
General Controis (ITGCs) and IT Application
Level Controls (ITACs) implemented by the
management in the IT system with the help of
auditor's experts.

Key aspects of the ITGC testing involved, but
were not [imited to, the following audit
procedures:

+ Evaluated the appropriateness of controls
for security governance to protect systems
and data from unauthorised use, including
logging of security events and procedures
o identify vulnerabilities.

+ Evaluated whether Company has controls
for log capturing, review and follow up
action.

+ Evaluated management processes for
maodifications 1o the IT environment
including monitoring and authorization of
such modifications, Tested changes made
to the IT system that involved significant
impact on financial reporting.

+ Tested segregations of duties controls
around program maintenance, security
administration and key husiness
processes,

+ Assessed the appropriateness of IT system
job scheduling and alert configuration
capabilities.

» Tested the process and controls
implemented for user access management,
including granting, change and removal of
access to systems and operafions.
Evaluated the appropriateness of
processes and tools to ensure availability
of data as per user requests and business
requirements, including data back-up and
restoration plans of the Company.,

+ Where deficiencies were identified, we
tested compensatory mitigating controls
along with additional substantive
procedures,

Key aspects of the IT application level controls
testing involved, but were not limited to, the
following audit procedures:

+ |dentification and understanding of
systems used by the Company o
maintain security access to financial
applications

+ Evaluated segregation of incompatible
duties relevant io security administration

» Tested access set up and change
procedures

» Tested automated controls on key
financial applications including interest

Chartered Accountants
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calculation, overdue days' identification
etc,

OQur results: Based on the above procedures,
the [T general controls and IT application level
controls implemented by the management
appear to be reasonable.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Réport thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial

statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion therecn.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears o be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Repor, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash fiows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act, ‘read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's refig
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high lavel of assurance, but is fiot a guaraig
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that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstaterents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As pait of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,

as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are

also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

-+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going.concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify aur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

13.

14,

15,
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scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contro! that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation preciudes public disclosure about the maiter or when, in exiremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences of deoing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest henefits of
such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to i

directers during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under section
read with Schedule V fo the Act.
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As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a.

we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards

prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules,
2014 (as amended),

on the basis of written representations received from the directors and taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as on 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated 15 May 2019 as per
Annexure B expressed our unmedified opinion on adequacy and operative effectiveness of
internal controls over financial reporting; and

with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Ruies, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion
and {o the best of our information and according fo the explanations given to us:

i the Company, as defailed in Note 33 to the financial statements, has disclosed the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position;

ii. the Company did not have any fong-ferm contracts including derivatives contract for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

i, there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv. the disclosure requirements relating fo holdings as well as dealings in specified bank
notes were applicable for the period from & November 2016 to 30 December 2016 which
are not relevant to these financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

For Watker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001078N/N500013

Anamitra Das
Pariner
Membership No.: 062191

Place: Kalkata
Date: 15 May 2019

Chartered Accauttants
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Arohan
Financial Services Limited {Formerly Archan Financial Services Private Limited), on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations

given to us and the books of account and other records examinad by us in the normal course of audit,
we report that:

() (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guartitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b} The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its fixed assets under
which fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which,
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not hold any immovable property (in the nature of fixed assets’).
Accordingly, the provigions of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(ii) The Company does not have any inventory. Accerdingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii} of
the Order are not applicable.

(iii) The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partherships or other parties covered in the register maintained under

Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clauses 3(iii){(a), 3(iii)}(b} and
3(iii}(c) of the Order are not applicable.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not undertaken any
transaction in respect of loans, guarantees and security covered under section 185 of
the Act. In our opinion, the Company has not undertaken any transaction in respect of
investments, guarantees and security covered under section 186 of the Act. Further, in

our opinion, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in
respect of loans given.

(v) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014

(es amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not
applicable.

{vi) The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-

section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s services. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3{vi) of the Order are not applicable.

{vii)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess, gocds and service tax and other material statutory dues as applicable, have
generally been regularly deposited to the appropriate authorities, though there has been
a slight delay in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable. Further, no undisputed amounis payable in respect thereof

were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date
they became payable.

{b) The dues outstanding in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise and value added tax on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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Name of Nature of Amount Amount Period to Forum where
the statute dues {(¥lacs) | paid under | which the dispute is
protest amount pending
(¥ lacs) relates
The Income Tax 22.88 1152 AY 2014-15 | Commissioner of
Income-tax ncome Tax
{Appeals)

{viii)  The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or any dues

to debenture-holders during the year. The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to
any financial institution or government.

(ix) The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments). In our opinion, the Company has applied the term loans
for the purposes for which these were raised.

3] According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no material

fraud by the Company or by its employees or officers or by the Company have been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

{xi} Managerial remuneration has been paid/provided by the Company in accordance with

the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with
Schedule V to the Act.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause
3{xii) of the Order are not applicable.

{xiii)  In our opinion all {ransactions with the related parties are in compiiance with sections
: 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed
in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv)  During the year, the Company has made private placement of shares. In respect of the
same, in our opinion, the Company has complied with the requirement of Section 42 of
the Act and the Rules framed thereunder. Further, in our opinion, the amounts so raised
have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised. During the year, the

Company did not make preferential allotment of sharesfiully/partly convertible
"“debentures.

(xv) In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the
directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 182 of the Act.

(xvi) The Company is required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and such registration has been obtained by the company.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 301076N/N500013

Anamitra Das
Partner
Membership No.: 062191

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15 May 2019

Charierad Accountants
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Arohan
Financial Services Private Limited (Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited), on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financiat Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Arohan Financial Services Limited (formerly
Archan Financial Services Private Limited) ("the Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March

2019, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the company
of as that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal confrol over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal contral stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountanis of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial centrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the company's business, including adherence to company’s policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘1CAF) and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of [FCoFR, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of IFCoFR included obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
gffectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the

auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. Acompany's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabitity
of financial-reporting and the praparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s IFCoFR includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairty
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principies, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Charierad Accountants
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Annexure B fo the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Arohan
Financial Services Private Limited (Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited}, on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due o error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that

IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may detericrate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at 31 March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the

Company considering the essential components of internat control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAL

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001078N/N500013

.--“"'-"J

Anamitra Das
Pariner
Membership No.: 062191

Place: Kolkata
Date: 15 May 2019

Chartered Actountants
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
(Formerly Walker, Chandiok & Co)
10 C Hungerford Street

Sth Floor, Kolkata 700017

India

T +91 33 4050 8000

Auditor's Report

[Pursuant to the Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor's Report (Reserve
Bank} Directions, 2016)

To

The Board of Directors

Arohan Financial Services Limited

(formerly Arohan Financiai Services Private Limited)
PTI Building, 4" Floor

DP-9, Sector V, Salt Lake

Kolkata - 700 091

Dear Sirs,

Report on the Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Arohan Financia! Services
Limited (formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited), ("the Company"), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss and
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting

policies and other explanatory information and have issued an unqualified opinion vide our
report dated 15 May 2019,

2, As required by Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“the RBI") vide
Notification No. RBI/DNBS/2016-17/48 dated 28 September 2016 ("the Directions”), in
addition to the report made under section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 on the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019, we report on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3(A) and 3(C) of the said directions:

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

3. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements, that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended). This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

Chartered Accountants
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with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are fres from material misstatemant,
whether due to fraud or error.

The Company's Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring that the Company
complies with the requirements of the RBI directions and notifications. This responsibility
includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
compliance with the RBI directions and notifications,

Auditor's Responsibility

5.

7.

Pursuant io the requirements of the Directions it is our responsibility to examine the
books and records of the Company and report on the matters specified in paragraphs
3(A) and 3(C} of the Directions, io the extent applicable io the Company.

We conducted our examination of the Statements in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the
ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issusd by the Instituie of Charierad
Accountants of India.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quaility
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

Conclusion

8.

Chartered Accountanis

Based on our examination of the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31
March 2019, books of accounts and records of the Company as produced for our

examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we further
report that:

a. The Company is engaged in the business of Non-Banking Financial institution (without
accepting or holding public deposits) and pursuant to the provisions of Section 45 I{a)
of the RBI Act, 1934 (as amended), it has obtained a certificate of registration vide
certificate no. B.05.02932 dated 8 July 2009.

b. In our opinion, and in terms of its principal business criteria i.e. financial asset/income
pattern for the vear ended and as at 31 March 2019, the Company is entitled to
continue to hold the certificate of registration issued by the RBI.

C. The Company is meeting the required net owned fund requirement as laid down in
Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company — Systemically Important Non-

Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2018.

d. The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on 27 Aprif 2018 have
passed a resolufion for non-acceptance of any public deposits during the year ended
31 March 2018,

e. The Company has not accebted any public deposits during the year ended
31 March 2019.
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f.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the Company has complied with the prudential norms issued by the RBI
in relation fo income recognition, accounting standards, asset classification and
provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as applicable to it in terms of the Non-
Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
and Depasit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018.

. The capital adequacy ratioc (19.95%) calculated based on unaudited financial

statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 has been submitted with the RBI in
form NBS- 7 on 11 April 2019. The recomputed capital adequacy (20.05%) ratio
based on audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 is vet to be
filed with the RBl. However, based on our examination of the computation of the

capital adequacy ratio, we report that such ratio is in compliance with the minimum
capital to risk asset norm prescribed by the RBI.

. The Company has been correctly classified as NBFC Micro Finance {nstitutions (MFI)

as defined in the Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically !mportant Non-

Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company {(Reserve Bank) Directions,
2018.

Restriction on use

9. This repert is issued solely for the use of the Board of Directors to enable the Company
to comply with the requirements of the Directions issued by RBI and may not be suitable
for any other purpose. Accordingly, our report should not be quoted or referred to in any

other document or made available to any other person or persons without our prior
written consent.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLLP
Chartered Accountants

Anamitra Das

Partner

Membership No.: 062191

Place: Kolkata
Date: 15 May 2018

Chanared Accountants




Arohan Financial Services Limited
(Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Equity and liabilities

Sharehoiders' funds
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

Non-current labilities
Long-term borrowings
Other long-term Lzbilides
Leng-term: provisions

Current liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Trade payables
Tonl cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises '
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than
micto enterpriscs and small enterprises

Other current labilifies

Shore-term provisions

Tatal
Assets

Non-current assets

Propetty, plant and equipmenc - tangible assers
Intangible assets

Entangible asser under development
Non-curtent invesohents

Deferred tax assets (net)

Loan w customers

Long-term loans and advances

(Ohher non-cutrent assets

Curtent assets

Current investments

Cash and bank balances

[oan w customers

Short-term loans and advances
Other cutrent assets

Total

Notes

14
15
16
17
18

14
19
16
17
20

Notes 1 to 40 form an_integral part of these financial statcmc&,s.

A

AROHAN

FAYISHRAAR-INTELE ECAP ENTERPRISE

Ag at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1,01,16,14,080 88,22,43,530
5,80,05,77,607 2,91,62,10,191
6,81,21,91,687 3,79.84,53.721
12,95,35,06,081 9,06,25,10,576
13,84,35,163 411,711,927
31,19,83,853 28,68,00,359
13,40,39,25,097 9,39,04,91,862
2,42,75,67,330 2,34,16,61,075
15,82,42,42.157 8,00,05,73,856
16,52,33,157 1.04,38,270
18,41,70,42,644 10,35,26,73,201
38,63,31,59,428 23,54,16,18,784
6,01,04,779 49920513
5,70,37,105 5,34,11,627
528,650 -
5,00,000 5,00,000
11,51,47,340 7.85,10,734
9,14,89,77,501 4,52,31,15,161
3,96,27,910 49,62,004
59.27,74,391 49,60,39,677
10,01,46,97.6746 5,21,14,59,716
- 1,58,296
2,07,78,41,106 1,77.90,33,776
25754492577 16,09,23,71,725
16,61,22,646 13,37,64,386
62,00,05,423 36,48,30,885
28,61,84,61,752 18,33,01,59,068
38,63,31,59,428 23,54,16,18,784

This is the Balance Sheer referred to in our report of even date

For and on behalf of Board of Ditectors of
Financial Services Limited

st

Anurag Agrawal
Director

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registradon No. 001076 /N530013

2919 IN: 02385780
Anamitta Das " ) ® oﬂ"' )
Partner J“FJ /
Memberstup No. 062199
: : Milind Mare
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Place: Kolkata
Date: 15 May 2019

Place: Kolkata
Date: 15 May 2019




Arohan Financial Services Limited
(Formerly Arghan Financial Services Private Limited)
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2019
(All amounts in % unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue '
Revenue from operations 21 6,31,02,80,283 3,21,6894,126
Other income 22 3,62,14963 5,32,81,738
Total revenue 6,34,64,95,246 3,27,01,75,864
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 23 1,17,38,50,334 69,15,80,868
Finance costs 24 2,53,60,60,075 1,23,57,44,000
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 4,09,61,313 3,04,83,995
Provisions and write offs 26 40,69,37,692 48,55,42 462
Other expenses 27 65,65,96,357 37.26,42 10
Total expenses 4,81,44,05,771 2,81,59,93,335
Profit before tax 1,53,20,89,475 45,41,82,529
I'ax expense )
Cuzrent mx 45,85,24,667 20,26,04,393
Tax reversal for earlier periods (1,05,50,358) {9,97,6171
Deferred rax credit (3,66,36,606) {4,40,85,863)
Total tax expenses 41,13,37,70% 15,75,20,913
Profit for the year 1,12,07,51,772 29,66,61,616
Earnings per equity share [EPES] 34
Nominal value per share 10.00 10.00
Basic 12.30 335
Diluted 12.27 3.35
Notes 1-to 40 form an integral part of these financial staternents,
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chattered Accountants For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013 Aroban Financial Services Limited
/ ar Mambiar Anurag Agrawal
itra D irector Direcror
‘;“a“““a e (DIN: 02385780)
armer
Membership No. 062191 J{V
i 'ﬁ éu’udh Sirigh G Thakur Milind Nare
Place: Kolkata Company Sectetary Chief Financial Officer

Date: 15 May 2019

Place: Kolkata
Date: 15 May 2019




Arohan Financial Services Limited

(Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019

(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Provisions and write offs

Loss on foreign exchange flnctuation

Liabilites weitten back

Employee stock option compensatdon

Gain on sale of investments

Loss/ (gain) on sale of propetty, plant and equipment
Operating profit before working capital changes

Adjustment for changes in working capital:
Increase in loans to customers

(Increase) / decrease in long-terim loans and advances
Increase in shost-term loans and advances
(Inrerease)/ decrease in other non-current assets
Increase in other current assets

Increase in long-term provisions

Decrease in short-term provisions
(Increase}/decrease in margin money deposit (net}
Increase in other labilities

Cash used in operating activities

Income taxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from purchase and sale of invesiments (net)
Net cash used in investing activities

N
A AROHA

RAVISHEALR INTELLECAP ENTERPRISE

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1,53,20,89.475 45,41,82 529
4.09,61,313 3,04,83,995
40,69,37,692 48,55,42,462

- 6,364

- {4,03,099

1,47122 19,87,222
{94,56,122) (2,10,73,824)

1,048 (1,46,479)
1,%7,06,80,528 05,05,79,170
(14,58,11,33,285) (11,58,55,25,115)
18,87,298 {49,51,485)
{3,23,58,260) (7,06,77,397)
(3,07,69,403) 2,48,53,769
(25,51,74,538) (13,94,99.208)
5,90,38,704 9,27,60,920
(3,28,56,922) (7,75,10.973)
(21,20,44,699N 4,88 82651
1,01,17,68,175 36,67,44,975
(12,10,09,62,402) (10,39,43,42,693)
(47,95,27,513) {19,69,36,88%)
{A) (12,58,04,89,915) {10,59,12,81,578)
{3,43,60,175) (3,80,63,402)
(1,92,38,515) (1,45,40,120)
43,847 3,58,060
96,14,415 2,10,73,824

By {4,39,40,428) (3,11,71,638)




Archan Financial Services Limited

(Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(Al amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of equity shares

Share issue expenses

Proceeds from long-term borrowings

Repayment of long-term borrowings

Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net)

Net cash generated from financing activities (&

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year

Add: Increase in cash and cash equivalents due to amalgamation
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (refer note ih]

Note 1:

Cash and bank balances Note 19)

Less: Other bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents considered for cash flow

"This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our repott of even date,

For Walker Chandiok & Co 1LP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 001076N/N500013

AOPES
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Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1,93,58,55,453 10,01,525

(4,30,16,381) -

20,96,22,80,000 13,65,42,50,000
(10,16,14,39,478) (4,93,35,60,281)
8,59,06,255 1,64,00,21,844
12,77,95,85,851 10,36,26,04,088
15,51,55,508 (25,98,49,128)
1,58,61,20,229 1,82,68,22 487

- 1,91,46,870
1,74,12,75,737 1,58,61,20,229
2,07,78,41,106 1,77,90,33,776
33,65,65,369 19,2913 547
1,74,12,75,737 1,58,61,20,229

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
ohan Financial Services Limited

A

%t Nambiar Anurag Aprawal
rector Director
Anamitra Das (DIN: 023:?0)'
Partner
Membership No. 062191 g ; | é } s{d/
irudh Sinphi G Thakur Milind Nare
Place: Kolkata Company Secretaty Chief Financial Officer

Date: 15 May 2019

Place: Kolleara
Date: 15 May 2019




(Formerly Archan Financial Services Private Limited)

Arohan Financial Services Limited A A R 0 H A N

Sumumary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

1

4)

b)

<)

d)

ALVISHKAAR-INTELLECAP ENTERPRISE

Corporate information

Arohan Financial Services Limited {“the Company” or “Arohan”) is a company incorporated in India and registered under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Compeny has been registered as a Non-Banking Finandal Company (“NBFC™) with the Reserve Bank of India (“the
RBI") from 8 july 2009 and pursuant to the notification issued by the RBI For classification of NBFCs as Non-Banking Finance Company -
Micro Finance Institutions (“NBFC-MFI™), the Company’s application for registration as an NBFC-MFI was approved by the RE1 on 10 January
2014,

The Company has converted itself into a public limited company and changed its name to Arohan Financial Services Limited and has received 2
fresh certificate of incorporadon dated 25 May 2018,

As a NBFC-MFI with headquarter in Kolkata, Arohan mainly operates in the low income states such as Bihar, Jharkhand, Odisha, Assam, West
Beapal, Chattisgarh, Meghalaya, Utear Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh etc. The Company is primarily engaged in providing the livelihood promotion

sevices such as micro-credit 10 socio-economically disadvantaged customers un-reached by the formal banking systems and other allied services
such as distribution of insurance and pension products,

Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles in India
(‘Indian GAAP") and comply in all material respects with the mandatory Accounting Standards (“AS™) prescribed under section 133 of the
Compzanies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, Companies {Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules 2016 and with the relevant provisions of the Act, pronouncements of the Instimate of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAIY) and
guidelines issued by the RBI as applicable to 2 NBFC.MFI Systemically Important Non Deposit taking Company (Reserve Banls) direcdons 2016
(8s amended). The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis except for interest on non-performing Joan asscts which are
accounted on cash basis based on the guidelines issned by the RBI from time to time. The accountng policies applied by the Company are
consistent with those used in the prior period,

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in

the Schedule IIT 1o the Act, Based on the nawre of work, the Company hes ascertained i1 operatdng cycle as up to twelve momhs for the
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilites.

Significant Accounting Policies

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Indisn GAAT requires management to make estimates and assumptions thas
affect the reported balances of assets and Habilities and disclosures relafing to contingent assets and Liabilities as at the date of the financial

‘statements and reported amounts of income and expenses during the period. Examples of such estimates include provisions for doubtful loans

and advances, future obligations under employee retirement benefit plans, income taxes and the useful lives of property, plant and equipment.

Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual resuits could differ from these
estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods.

Property, plant and equipment - tangible assets

Property, plant and equipment (PPE’) are stated at cost, net of accumulated depeeciation, The cost of an asser comprises its purchase price and
any cost directly arributable for bringing the asset to jts working condition and locaton for its intended use,

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization,

Depreciation/ Amortzation

Depreciation on PPE is provided on straight line method over the usefu! lives of assets prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Act. In respect of
additions, deprecietion is provided on pro-rata basis from the date of acquisition/installation. Written down value of all assets acquired prior to

01 April 2014 are being depreciated over their temaining useful life as prescribed in Schedule 1T of the Act;

Computer software expenditure is amortized over a period of 5 years on smaight line method,




Arohan Financial Services Limited A A R O H A N

(Formetly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited)
$Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

€

g

AEVISHEAAR-INTELLECAP ENTERPRISE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. I such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount js reduced to its recoverzble amount. The
reduction js treated a5 an impairment loss and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in assessing value in use the estimated funore
cashflows are discounted to their present value using a pre tax discount rate that reflects cutrent market assessments of time valus of money and
the risk specific to the asset. In derermining net selling price, recent market transactions are mken jnto account, if available. After impaiment,
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life. If at the balance sheer date there is an

indication that 2 previously assessed impaitmen loss no longer exists then the recoverable amounat is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to 2 maximum of depreciated histotical cost.

Investments

Investments thar are readily realizable 20d intended to be held for not more than a year and current maturities of long-term investments are
classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-termy investments, Cument investments are carried at lower of cost
and fair value determined on an individual investment basis. Long-term investments are cagried at cost. However provision for diminutien in
value is made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of the long-term jnvestments,

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefies will flow 1o the Company and the collectzbility is reasonably
assured,

1) Interest on loans given is recognized on accrual basis at agreed interest rates, except in the case of Won-Performing Assets (“NPAs”), where
interest is recognized upon realization, in accordance with the RBI guidefines,

2) Loan processing fees income is recognized over the period of the loan on a straight-line basis.

3) Interest income on deposits with banks is recognized in time proportion basis aking into account the amount cwstanding and the rate
applicable,

4) Profit/loss on sale of investments is computed on the basis of weighted average cost of investments and recognized at the dme of actual
sale/redemption.

5) Securjtzation and direct assignment of loan portfolio
Profit / premium arising at the tme of securitization of loan portfolio is amortized over the life of the underlying loan portfolio / securites and

any loss arising therefrom is accounted for immediately. Income from interest strip (excess interest spread) is recognized in the Stawement of
Profit and Loss account net of any losses when collected in cash.

G} Acquisition of Assets through Dicect Assignment of Cash Flows

Premium paid on purchased Joans are amortized on straight line basis over the tenure of the loans. Discount on the purchased loans are
accounted for on proportionate basis over the teoure of the loans in accordance with the repayment schedule. Tnterest retained under assignment
of loan receivables is recognised on realisation basis over the life of the underlying portfolia, -
7) Grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the enterprise will comply with the conditions attched to them; and where
such benefits have been ¢arned by the enterprise and it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be made. When the grant of subsidy

related to revenue is income on systernatic basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period necessary to match them with the related
cost, which are intended to compensate. Such grants are shown as other income.

8) All other income is recognised on an accrual basis.
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h) Taxes

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current jocome tag is measured at the amount ¢xpected to be paid to the tax authorities in
accordance with the Income-tax Act, 1961, Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income for the period and reversal of timing differences of zarlier peziods.

Peferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax liability
are recognised for all mxable dming differences, Deferred tax assets ara recognized only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that
sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assers can be realized. In situerions where the Company has
unmabsorbed depreciation or carcy forward wx losses, all deferred tax assets are recoguized oaly if there is a virtual cerminty supported by
convineing evidence that they can be realized against futre taxable profits,

Unrecognized deferred tax assets of earlier years are re-assessed and recognized to the extent that it has become reasonably ceruin or virmally
cerrain, 25 the case may be that furure taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realized. The cazrying amount
of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

The Company writes-down the carrying amount of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer reasonably certain or vittually certain, as
the case may be, that sofficient future taxable income will be available against which deferred tax asset can be realized, Any such write-down is
reversed to the extent that it becomes reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be

Asset classification and provisioning
Loan asset classification of the Company is given in the tble below:

Particulars Criteria

Standard agset The asset in respect of which, no default in repayment of principal or payment of

percetved and which dees not disclose any problem nor carry more than normal risk
business,

Non-performing asset An asser for which, interest/principal payment has remained overdue for 2 pericd

of 90 or more

Provision for loan portfolio

Provision for loan porrfolio has been made in accordance with the Provisioning requirements for NBFC-MFI issued by the RBI vide its circular
no. DNBR.(PD) CC.Nc.008/03,10.119/2016-17 dated 1 Seprember 2016 (as amended), which requires the minimum provision for qualifying
portfolio to be higher of (i) 1% of the outstanding loan portfolio or (i) 50% of the aggregate loan instalments which are overdue for mose than
20 days and less than 180 days and 100% of the aggregate loan instalments which are overduc for 180 days or more and management estirnates
of future losses, whichever is higher.

Loans and advances other than qualifying portfolio loans are provided for at the higher of management estimates and provision required as per
the Master Dircetion — Non-Baaking Financial Company — Systemically Important Non-Deposit uking Company and Deposit tking Company
{Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (as amended), ("the Mastar Directions").

Loans write off

Under the following circumstances, loans are wrinen off :

4} Under extra-ordinary citcumstances such as the death of a customer who has not received life insurance coverage or his/her spouse and/or
any other incident where in the opinion of the management, the loan amount is not recoverable,

b) Where the balance outstanding at the tdme of closure of loan is insignificant and in the opinion of the management, the cost of collection is
not economically viable,

< All loss assets as identified in terms of the Master Directons,

Eatnitgs per equity share
Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the oet profit or loss for the year artributable to equity shareholders by the weighted

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of diluted earnings per equity shate, the net profit or loss for the

year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average aumber of shares vutstanding during the period arc adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potendal equity shares,
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

k) Employee benefits:

Provident fund
The Company contributes to the provident fund maintsined by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner, in accordance with Employees
Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952. The plan is 2 defined contib

ution plan and contribution paid or payable is recognized
2s an expense in the period in which services are rendered by the eligible employees.

Leave Encashment

Provision for compensated absences is made on the basis of actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date, The actuarial valuation is carried out
using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognized in the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which they atise.

Gratuity

Gramity is a post-employment defined benefit plan. An independent actuary, using the projected unit credit method caleulaics the defined benafie

obligation annually. Actuerial gains or losses atising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are credited or chazged to
the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such gains or losses arises,

- Employee state insurance

The Company contributes to the Eployees State Insurance Fund maintained by the state authorities, in accordance with Employees State

Insurance Act, 1948. The plan is 2 defined contsibution plan 2nd contribution paid or payable is recognized as an expense on accrual basis, There
. 21e 1o other obligations of the Company other than the contributions made to the funds

Employee share based payments

Recognition, measurement and disclosures relating to employee stock compensation is dome in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Acceunting for Employee Share-based Payments (“the Guidance Note™), issued by the ICAL The Company uses intrinsic vahue method for the
purposes of measurement of compensation cost and the fair valoe methed for the purposes of additional disclosures in the financial smtements,
An independent valuer determines the intrinsic value of the undetlying shares as on the date of the grant and compensation expenses, where

applicable, are recagnized as deferred employee stock compensation and is charged to Statement of profit and lass using the straight line method
over the vesting period,

Termination benefit

The Company recognizes termination benefit as a liability and an expense when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it

is probable that 2n cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the wbligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligaden.

) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
* A provision is recognized when there is a present obligation as 4 result of 2 past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to setsle the obligation and in respect of which retiable estmate can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance shect date ang
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an eutflow of resources would be required to setde the obligation,
the provision is reversed.
* A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation but probably will nor require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood on outflow of resources is
remaote, no provision or disclosure is made,
* Contingen assets are not recognized in the financial statements, However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain
that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income aze recognized in the period in which the change occars.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

m} Leases

n)

D)

Finance leases, which effecdvely transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are
capitalized at the lower of the fair values of the Jeased property and present value of the minimum lease payrnents at the inception of the lease
term and disclosed as leased assets. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability bused on the
implicit rate of rectum. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and loss, Lease managemnent fees, legul charges

. and other initia} direct costs are capitalized. A leased asset is depreciated on a straight line basis over the useful life of the asset. However, if there

is no reasonable certainty that the company will obtain the ownership by the end of the lease term, the capitalized asset is depreciated on 4
straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term. Leases where the lessor effectively retains,
substantially all the cisks and benefits of ownership of the leased item, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized
45 an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight-line basis over the Jease term.

Transactions in foreign cusrency

Forelgn currency transections are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate berween the
teporting currency and foreign currency at the date of the transaction, Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the year-end rates.
Non-monetary items which are cartied in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction,

Ezxchange differences arising on the settlement of monetaty items or on reportng monetary items of Company at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the yeat, of reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the
year in which they arise.
Borrowing costs .
Interest on borrowing is recognized on a time proportiog basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate spplicable on the
borrowing. Ancillery expenditure incurred in connection with. the arrangernent of borrowings is amottized over the tenure of the respective
borrowings. Unamartized borrowing cost remuining, if any, is fully expensed off as and when the related borrowing is prepaid /eancelled,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash znd cash equivalents comprise cash and deposit with banks, The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original marurity
at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible into koown amounts of cash 1o be cash equivalents.
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Arohan Financial Services Limited

{Formnedy Arohan Pinancial Services Private Limited)

Swnmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Number Amoung Number Amount
4 Share capital ’
Authorised shate capital
Equity shares of € 10 each 11,24,53 320 1,12,45,33,200 11,24,53,320 1,12,45,33,200
112455330 1,12,45,33,200 11,453,320 1,12,45,33,200
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up '
Equity shares of % 10 each [refer note (a) below] 102673016 1,02,67.38,160 8,84,65,353 8%,46,53,530
Less: Amount recoverable from ESOP trust {15,12,508) {1,51,25,080) ~ {2.41,000) (24,10,000)
. W161408  1,01,16,14,080 8,82,24,353 88,22,43,530
{#® Recanciliation of Equity Shate Capital 31 March 2010 31 Magch 2018
Number Atnount Numbhber Amount
Equity shares of ¥ 10 cach
Balance at the beginning of the year 8,84,65,353 88,46,53,530 8,25,62,368 82,56,23,680
Less : Cancellation pursuant to the Scheme [cefer Note (£) below] - - {1,80,67,494} (18,06,74,540)
Add : Shares issued pursuant to the Scheme [refer Note (e) below] . - 2,39,70,479 23,97,04,790
Add : Issued during the year o] 1,42,08,563 14,20,85,630 - -
Balance at the end of the year 10,26,73,916 1,02.67,35,160 8&5,353 88,46,53,530

(*) The Company during the year has ssoed 1,28,58,563 equity shares of T 10 each on a private placement basis. Details of the issued shares are zs

follows:
Sharcholders

Aavishkaor Venture Management Services Privare Limited
Aavishkaar Venwure Management Services Private Limited
Aavishkaar Capital Advisoes LLP

Maj Javest Financial Inclusion Fund 11

TR Capital HI Mauriting

Rajesh Sachdeva

No of shares
30,34,685

921,375
71,82,603
8,59,950
4,20.975
4,29.975

Issueprice Asmount (T)

146.81
162,80
146,81
162,80
162.30
162,80

44,55,22,105
14,99,99 850
1,05,44,77 945
13,99,99,860
6,99,99.930
6,99,99,930

Purther , the Company bas also issued 6,00,000 and 7,50,000 equity shares of T 10 each to Arohan ESOP wust 4t 4 premivmm of T 120 and T 152.80

each respectively for a total consideration of 3 78,00,00,00 and ¥ 12,21,00,000 respectively nnder the Avchan ESOP Scheme 2018 which has been
netted off from Jssued shate capital and securities premium as per the Guidence Note fssued by ICAL

IS

A

Tetms and riphts attacheds

Equity Shares: The Company has only one class of equity shares having 2 par value of £10 per share. Each holder of vquity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The Compeny declares and pays dividend in Indian tupees, |f any. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directars is subject to the
approvil of the shareholders in the ensving general meeting, During the eurrent finandial year the company has not propesed/declered any dividend,
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holdess of equity shares will he entitled to reccive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion 1o the sumber of equity shares held by the shzrehoklers.

I

-

No addinonal shares were alloted as fully paid-up by way of bonus shares or pursuant to contract withour payment being received in cash doring the
last five years, Further, nan of the shares were bought back by the Company during the Jast Gve yeazs.

@ Details of shareholders helding more than 5% paid-up capiral 31 March 2019 31 March 218
MNumber ki) MNumber Ye

Equity shares of ¥ 10 cach

Aavishkanr Goodwel Indis Microfinance Develapment Company 11 1,85,35,529 18.06% 1,85,39,529 20.96%
Limited

Tano Indic Private Equity Fund II 1,69,14,275 16.47% 1,60,14,279 19.12%
Maj Invest Financial Inclusion Fund 11 1,54,01 267 15.00% 14541317 16.44%
Azvishkaar Venrure Management Services Private Limited 1,300,956 380 1276% 01 43,320 LM%
Intellectval Capiral Advisory Services Pet Lid 1,23,54,409 12.03% 1,23,54,499 13.97%
TR Cﬂp.itz] 11T Mauritios 097,18722 9.47% 92.88,747 10.50%%

Aavishlaar Capita Advisors LLP 71,852,603 700%% - -
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Arohan Financial Services Limited

(Formetly Arohan Pinancial Services Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in € unless otherwise stated)

& Schemo of Acrangement

Pursuant to 2 Scheme of Amangement {"the Scheme”) ander section 230 10 232 of the Act, sanctioned by the Nadonal Company Law Tiibunal
{"NCLT"), Kolkata Bench vide its order dated 26 March 2018 and NCLT, Mumbai Bench vide its order dated 09 darch 2018, Intellecash
Microfinance Nerwork Company Privare Limited (“Transferor Company") merged with Arohan Finaneial Services Private Limited {"Transferec
Company") with effeet from 1 Apdl 2017 ("Appoinced Date”). The Scheme came into effect on 28 March 2018, the day on which both the order of
the NCLT, Kolkata and Mumbai Bench wers delivered 1o the Registrar of Companics,

The investment held in the Transferce Company by the Transferor Company (1,80,67,494 equity shares of T 10 each) have been cancalled {securities
premium adjusted 3 5,66,79,154). The Transferes Company has issaed %1344 cquity shares for every 1 share held in the Transferor Company to the
sharcholders of the Transferor Company aggregaring o 2,39,70,479 equity shates of T 10 each.

) Employee stock option scherne ("ESOF Scheme™)

Archan ESOP Trust ("ESOP Trast") was formed on 19 March 2010 1o pramote participation of the cligible employees of the Company in the
ownership and growth of the Company and to confer on them certain weifare beaefits through the implementation of the welfare schemes, Pursuznt
to the sharchalder's approval in the meerdng held on 15 March 2010 and 27 Apri) 2018 (empowering the Board to take any fazther dedsions with
segard to ESOP schemes), the Board is autherized to issue employee stock options, thar are exercisable Into not more than 21,75,000 equity shares of
the Company to eligible employees and has extended interest free loan 1 ESOP Trust under the Scheme o provide financial assisence tw its
employees 1o purchase equity shares of the Company under such the Scheme.

ESOP 2013 ESOP 2017 ESQOP 2018
{Revised)
Dare of Grant 1July 2014 29 Aupust 2017 16 May 2018
Date of Board approval 29 Apdl 2014 19 May 2017 27 Apail 2018
MNunkber of options granted 2,86,992 2,29.280 597,264
Methed of seitlement Equity Equity Enquity
Vesding pedod 12months from 12 months from 36 months from
date of Grant date of Grant dare of Grant
The exercise price and remaining contractual e of the ESOP Scheme are 23 follows;
31 Masch 2012 3] March 2018
ESOP 2017
Exzreise price 84.70 84.70
Weighted average remaining contractua? life (in yeacs) - 041
ESOP 2018
Exercise price 13000 -
Weighted average remaining contmerual life (i years) 213 -
Reconciliation of stock optons: ESQP 2013 ESQP 2017 ESOP 2018
(Ravised)
Qurstanding as 2t 1 Apeil 2014 - - -
Stock option issued during the year 2,57.500 - -
Exercised and vested - - -
Forfeited 5,000 - -
Outstanding as at 31 March 2015 232,500 -
Swck option issued during the year - - .
Dvercised and veoed 47,500 - -
Forfeited /apsed 10,000 - -
Ouistanding as at 31 March 2016 1,75,000 - -
Stock option issued during the year - - -
Exercised and vested 1,35,000 - -
Forfeited/lapsed 5,000 - -
Ouwrstanding as at 31 hMarch 2017 35,000 - .
Stock opdon issued during the year 49,492 2,29,280 -
Exereised and vested 35,000 - -
Forfeired/lapsed - - -
Quustanding as at 3] March 2018 49,492 2,29 280 -
Swck; option issued during the year - - 597,264
Exercised and vester 48,497 30,600 -
Forfeited/lapsed 1,000 24,000 54,000
Trepanding 2« a7 3] March 2019 - 1,75,230 5,943,264




Arohan Pinancial Services Limited A A R 0 H A N
(Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited) AP INISHIAAR-INTELLECAP ENTERPRISE

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information :
(All amousts in T unless otherwise stated)

Agat As at
5 Reserves and surplus 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
} Securities premium reserve
Bajance at the beginning of the year 2,04.41,70,070 2,05,46,71,439
Add: Additions pursuant to the Scheme [refer Note 4{€)] - 17,87,20,839
Add : Premium recefved on shares issued during the year 1,99,17,55,333 476,525
Less: Adjusted pursuant to the Scheme [refer Note 4{c)) - (18,40,78,484)
Add: Transferred from shares options outstanding account 22,21,245 393,225
Less: Amount recoverable from ESOP trust (18,52,70,430) (60,13,524)
Less: Share issue expense {4,30,16,381) -
Balance at the end of the year 3,80,98,59,837 2,04,41,70,070
i) Share optons outstanding account .
Balance at the beginning of the year 20,74,123 4,280,126
Add : Amouni recorded on grants during the year 1,91,026 21,78,248
Less : Grants forfisted during the year (43,504) -
Less : Transferred to secutities preminm reserve (22,21,245) (3,93,225)
Less : Deferred stock compensation expense - (1,91,026)
Balance at the end of the year - 20,74,123
iif) Statatory reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 20,28,26,787 13,22,28 414
Add: Additions pursuant to the Scheme [refer Note 4(¢)] - 1,12,66,050
Add : Transfer from Statement of Profit and Loss ) 22,41,50,354 5,93,32,323
Balance at the end of the year 42,69,77,141 20,28,26,787
(*) In accordance with the provision of Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, the Company has transferred
20% of the profir after tax to the Statutory Reserve,
iv) General reserve
Balance 2t the beginning of the year 80,27,029 80,27,029
Less : Adjustment made during the yeac - -
Balance at the end of the year 80,27,029 80,27,029
¥) Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 65,91,12,182 39,36,23,446
Add: Additions pursuant to the Scheme Jrefer Note 4(e)] - 2,81,59,443
Add ; Profit for the year 1,12,07,51,772 29,66,61,616
Less : Transfer to Statutory reserve (22,41,50,354) {5,93,32,323)
Balance at the end of the year 1,55,57,13,600 65,91,12,182
Toral Reserves and Surplus 5,80,05,77,607 2,91,62,10,191




Arohan Financial Scrvices Limited
(Formerly Arohan Financial Services Privase Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounis in ¥ unless atherwise stated)
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¢ Bortowings

As at As at
31 March 201% 31 March 2018
Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
Secured
Dehentures 61,00,00,000 - 1,14,00,21.787 N
Term loans
IFram banks 16,63,01,73,483 1,67,50,00,000 0.67,15,45,684 1,84,50,00,000
TFrom others 8,01,91,84,485 ; 3,97,01,41,904 .
Working capital factlity from bank - 75.25,67.330 - 49,60,61,075
25,2593,57,973 242,756,530  14,78,17,09,375  2,34,16,61,075
Unsecured
Debentures 1,10,00,00,000 - 75,00,00,000 -
Term loan from banks 75,00,00,000 - 25,00,00,600 -
Term joan from others - - 50,00,00,000 -
Loans from related parties 4,4%.990 . 2,72,58,0066 -
' 1,85,04,49,990 ; 1,52,72,58,066 ;
Total borrowings 27,10,98,07 963 2,42,75,67,330 16,30,89,67 441 2,34,15,61075
Less: Current maruritics of long-term borrowings 14,15,63,01,682 - 7,24,64,56,865 .
Toral 12,95,35,06,081  2,42,75,67,330 9,06,25,10,576  2,34,16,61,075
Current muarurities of long-term borrowings
Debentores 35,00,00,000 - 21,788 -
‘Tertn loans
From Banks 10,66,10,48,1956 - 5,26,635,61,834 -
From Others 3.14,48.03,696 - 1,95,30,65,263 -
Loans and advances from relaced pardes 4,49,990 - 2,68,07,980 -
14,15,63,01.882 - 7.24,64,56,865 -
2} Terms and conditons of debentures issued
Name of Debenture Holder Amount Rate of Interest  Repayment Schedule
borrowed
)
Secured debentures
Blue Orchard Microtinanee Fund for Asia (MIFA) Debt Fund SA, 26,00,00,000 14.30% Bullet Repayement in April 2020
SICAV-SIY (Tace Value T10,00,000
Hinduja Leyland Finance Linited (Face Value $10,00,000% 35,Q0,00,000 11.49% Bullet Repayment in December 2019
Unsecuzed debentures
TIMR Capieal Finance Privace Limited {Face Value T 20,00,000) 10,00,00,000 14.25% Buller Repayment in Seprember 2122
Debentuore Mosthern Ave (Face Value ¥ 1,00,000) 65,00,00,0010 13.50% Bullet Repayment in April 2025
Morthern Ave Capital Limited (Face Value 103 35,00,00,000 13.50% Bullet Repayment in september 2025

b} Terms and conditions of long-term borrowings and nature of security

Term loans from banks and athers are sceured by way of hypotheeation of the outstanding loan portfalio, in addidon w the fixed deposits being held
a5 collareral security. The wrm loans carsies interest in the range of 7.353% per annum w 13.75% per annum (31 March 2018 < % w 13.5% per
annumy,. Non-convertible debennices issued by the Company ave secured by way of first ranking exclusive hypothecadon / charge on the owned
ponfolio of the Company to the extent of security cover rado of 1.1:1 o favour of the trustees for the benefit of the debentare holders.

c) Temms and conditions of short-term borrowings and nature of security

Short-term secured loans from banks and financial insttotions are secured by hypotheeation of loan portfolio, in addition ro the fixed deposits being

held as collawrat securiy and ave repagable in 12 or less than 12 monthly installments. The shat term loans carry jncerest in the range of 9.30% per
annum to 10.75%, per annum (31 Mareh 2018 : 9,500 wy 10,35% per annumy).

<l There have been no defaults in zépavment of debentures or ainy instaliments of term foan taken from banks and others.




Atrohan Financial Services Limited

(Formetly Asohan Financial Services Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(Adl amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

¢) Repayment details of long~ter£u borrowings are as below:
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Non Current
Repayment schadule Interest rate No, of No. of
installment Amount installment Amount
Term loan from banks:

Meonthly repayment schedule 9% o 10% - - 11 26,19,04,752
- - (] 2,50,00,000
10% to 11% - - 12 15,00,00,600
5 4,12,08,173 i2 10,01,08,757
- - 12 5,00,00,000
- - 2 38,88,904
- - 12 37,50,00,000
- 12 37,50,00,000
- - 11 25,00,00,008
9 10,71,42,857 12 1428 57,143
11 7.85,71,429 10 7,14,28 571
12 5,71,42,857 9 4,28,57,143
iz 1,00,00,00,000 12 1,00,04,00,000
- - 7 4,37,50,000
- - 8 3,33,33,333
4 1,66,66,667 {2 5,00,00,000
5 6,04,16,667 12 14,50,00,000
10 15,62,50,000 12 18,75,00,000
10 4,58,33,333 12 5,50,06,000
- - 1 23,80,952
- 4 95,23 810
- - 7 3,33,33,333
21 29,16,66,667 12 16,66,66,667
- - 12 9.50,00,092
- - 12 11,00,00,000
3 3,50,00,000 12 14,00,00,000
- - 9 22,50,00,000
- - 10 8,33,33,333
11% to 12% . - 3 71,42 864
- B 3 5,71,42,858
12 B,18,89,057 12 8,40,00,600
- - 3 1,81,81,820
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(Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited)
Sumumary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)
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Repayment schedule

Interest rate

Non Current

No. of No. of
instaliment Amount instaliment Amount

Quzrceerly repayment schedule 9% e 10% 3 2,50,00,003 4 3,33,33,332
. - - 4 14,28,57,150
- - 3 19,28,57,140

- - 2 3,25,00,000

- - 4 10,26,25,600

3 9,98,55,661 4 13,33,33,336

6 24,99 36,738 4 16,66,63,496

1 2,50,00,000 4 10,00,00,000

1% to 1% 3 18,75,00,000 4 25,00,00,000
2 14,28,57.145 4 28,57,14,284

4 28,57,14,287 3 21,4285713

4 14,28,57,143 3 10,71,42,857

3 21,42,85,716 4 28,57,14,284

1 7,14 28,583 4 32,1428 571

2 14,28,57,143 4 28,57,14,286

3 10,71,42,857 4 14,28,57,143

4 28,57,14,286 3 21,42,85714

4 14,28,57.143 3 10,71,42,857

4 6,29,00,000 4 6,12,00,000

4 8,14,00,000 4 7,92,00,000

4 74,00,000 4 72,00,000

4 74,00,000 4 72,00,000

4 1,85,00,000 4 1,80,00,000

4 74,00,000 4 72,00,000

3 26,89,80,000 4 35,86,40,000

2 18,75,00,000 4 37,50,00,000

1 1,75,73,084 4 7,10,74,356

- - 4 30,00,00,000

- - 4 20,00,00,000

2 6,25,00,000 4 12,50,00,000

4 12,50,06,000 4 12,50,00,000

- . 4 12,42,11,003

6 35,50,00,000 4 23,60,00,000

14 19,4444 464 12 16,66,66,656

11% to 12% - - 4 18,50,00,000
- - 4 2,00,00,000

- - 4 6,00,00,000

1 2,00,00,000 4 £,00,00,000

2 8,33,33,333 4 16,66,66,667

4 37,50,00,000 4 37,50,00,000

Bullet repayment schedule

11% o 12% 1.00 25,00,00,000.00 - -
13% to 14% 1.00 50,00,00,000,00 - -
Totsl teem loan from banks 6,71,91,25, 292 10,66,10,48,196
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Non Current Current
Repayment schedule Interest rate No. of No. of
installment Amount instaliment Amount
Term loan from others:
Monthly repayment schedule 9% o 10% B 5,02,96,576 12 11,04,23,811
7 1,41,12,584 12 2,22,77 996
12% 10 13% 5 §,98,97,875 12 19,79,46,019
] 12,27,28,933 12 22,40,51,546
13% to 14% - - 2 77,08,988
: - - 2 77,68,074
Quarterly repayment schedule 10% 10 11% - 3 19,97,29,218
- 3 9,98,64,315
6 40,41,11,480 4 23,65,17,060
Half Year repayment schedule 7% to 8% 9 14,00,00,000 12 18,00,00,000
19 39,30,00,000 10 20,70,00,000
10% 10 11% 6 8,25,00,000 2 2,90,00,000
6 26,80,00,000 2 20,10,00,000
9 15,14,00,000 12 19,92,00,000
11% 10 12% 4 4,80,00,000 2 10,20,00,000
4 3,20,00,000 2 6,50,00,000
7 1,19,00,00,000 2 60,00,00,000
- - 12 4,94,00,000
23 95,83.33,341 7 29.16,66,669
- - 5 4,12,50,000
Bullet repayment schedule 10% 1o 11% 1 99,0:0,00,000 - -
Total term loan from athers 4,87,43,80,789 3,14,48,03,696
Tertn loan from related party:
Monthly repayment schedule [ 17% 10 18% | . -] 1 4,49,990
Total term loan from related party - 4,49,990

Grand Total

11,59,35,06,082

13,80,63,01,882
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
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Other long-term liabilities

Unamortised loan processing fees

Unrealised gain on loan transfer transactions
Advance from cusiomers

Provisions

Contingent provision against standard assets
Provision for non-performing assets
Provision for employee benefits

Gratuity (refer note 11)

Compensated absences

AN
A AROH

AAVISHHAAR-ENTELLECEE ENTERPRISE

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

9,07,30,410 3,83,33,638
4,10,723 28,38,289%

4,72,94,030 -
13,84,35,163 4,11,71,927

As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
4,85,49,378 14,53,35,157 13,13,324 49,19,402

23,09,63,611 - 26,4827 821 -

2,28,64,864 - 1,82,55,852 -
96,06,000 1,98,98,000 24,12.362 55,18,868
31,19,83,853 16,52,33,157 28,68,09,359 1,04,38,270

There are no ameunts char need to be disdosed in accordance with the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,
2006 (the ‘MSMED Act’) pertaining to micre or small enterprises, For the year ended 31 March 2019, no supplier has indmated e
Company about its scatus as micro or small enterprises or its registration with the appropriate authority under MSMED Act.

Other current liabilides

Current maturities of long-term botrowings
Interest accrued 2nd due on borrowings (¥)
Interest acerved but not due on botrowings
Stamcory dues

Payable on account of securtisation/ assignment
Unrealised gain on loan transfer transactions
Employee dues

Unamortised loan processing fees

Liabilities for expenses

Unamortsed profit on buyout transacdons
Capital creditors

Security deposit

Advance from customers

Other payables

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2(1H8

14,15,63,01,882  7,24,64,56,865

78,60,045 61,40,586
22,00,68,768 11,30,79,746
3,91,81,754 2,54,19,770
72,26,85,545 23,33,53,689
3,08,01,376 3,44,87,560
11,27,29,185 5,40,06,699
24.97,15,349 15,27,25,787
12,02,30,438 6,64,20,693
- 24,38,379
24,56,527 7,10,616
27,67,386 14,87,500
1,04,01,200 -
14,90,41,802 6,38,45,966

15,82,42,42,157  8,00,05,73,856

(*) represents amount deducted by bank in subsequent month inspite of amount being duly funded on the due date.
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Summnary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
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11 .Employee benefits
Defincd Benefit Plans - As per Accuarial Valuations as on 31 March 2039 and recognised in the financial statements in respect of Employee Beneflt
Schemes {gratuity):
As at Asat
31 March 2012 31 March 2015
i) Change in projected benefit obligation
Projecred benefit obligation atthe beginning of the year 1,96,73,787 1,30,56,726
Service cost 40,02,000 31,49,478
Tnterest cost 13,93,000 8,44,542
Actuarial loss (net) 1,16,08,443 53,09,534
Benefits paid {16,90,230) {26,86,493)
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 3,49,87,000 1,96,73,787
i) Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the bepinning of the year 14,17,895 33,99,969
Expected return on plan assers 483,000 2,03,052
Employer contributions 1,19,11 438 501,367
Benefits paid {16,90,230) {26,86,493)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,21,22,103 14,17,895
iy Reconciliation of pregent value of obligation on the fair value of plan assets
Present value of projected benefit obligation at the end of the vear 3,49,87,000 1,96,73,787
Funded status of the phins {1,21,22,103) (14,17,895)
Liability recognised in the balance sheet 2,28,64,897 1,82,55,692
iv) Components of ernployer expenses
Service cost 40,02.000 31,49,478
Interest cost 13,935,000 844,542 |
Expected returns on plan assets {4,83.000 {2,03,052)
Recognized net acruaral loss 1,16,08,443 53,09,534
Total expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 1,65,20,443 91,00,502
Net Gratuity expenses have been recognised in "Contribution to Provident and other funds” under Note 23,
v} Key actuarial assumptions
Discount rate 7.30% 1.40%
Long-term tate of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00%
Rate of rewen on: plan assets 8.00% 8.00%
Withdrawal rates 1st 5 years of service 52%

A

AROHAN

AAVISHIASR-I

TELLECAP ENTERPRISE

mors than 5 years of service 1%

The Company assesses these assumptons with the projecied long-term plans of growth and prevalent industry standards. The estimates of future satary

increase consideted in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, senjority, promotion and other relevant faces,

vi) Table for 5 years actuarial valuation disclosures for Gratuity

Particulars

31 March 2019| 31 March 2018| 31 March 2017 3t March 2016 31 March 2(H5
Defined benefit obligation 3,49,87.000 1,96,73,787 1,30,56,726 81,85,618 58,52,178
Plan assets 1,21,22,103 14,17,895 33,99,969 10,83,981 26,10,949
Deficit 2,28,64,897 1,82,55,892 96,56,757 71,014,637 32,41,229
Net actuarial lass recognized 1,16,08,443 53,009,534 34,66,618 3541,793 33,57,1N1

vil} ‘The Company makes conuibution 1o stamtory provident Fund in accordance with Employees Provident Pund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952,

This is post-emplayment benefit and is in the netute of defined contribution plan. Contribution made b

March 2018: € 3,57,43 928).

y the Company duting the year is ¥ 4,34,87,776 (31
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12 Property, plant and equipment - tangible assets

FPurnitare Computer Office Total

and fixtures and accessores equipment
Gross bloclk :
Balance as at 1 April 2017 1,69,41,013 3,24,56,475 41,39,766 5,35,37,254
Addidons 1,27,40,993 2,41,03,449 33,16,975 40161417
Disposals - (6,85,103) - {6,85,103)
Balance as at 31 March 2018 2,96,82,006 5,58,74,821 74,56,741 9,30,13,568
Additions 86,73,756 1,92,31,339 82,040,991 3,61,06,086
Disposals {13,136) (6,18,048) {2,200) {6,53,584)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 3,83,42,626 7,44,88 112 1,56,55,532  12,84,66,270
Accumalated depreciation :
Up to 31 March 2017 88,135,923 1,64,51,340 22,99,726 2,75,64,989
Depreciation charge 19,36,310 1,24,13,414 10,256,411 1,53,76,135
Adjusument petsuant to amalgamation 19,353 5,996,694 9,404 6,25453
Reversal on disposal of assets - (4,73,522) - (4,73,522)
Up o 31 March 2018 1,07,69,586 2,89,87,928 33,35,541 4,30,93,055
Depreciaton charge 32,809,622 1,79,95,817 46,068,733 25892172
Reversal on disposal of assets {13,136) {5,88,400) (2,200 (6,03,736)
Up to 31 march 2019 1,40,46,072 4,63,95,345 79,40,074 6,83,3L,4M
Net block
Balance as atr 31 March 2018 1,89,12,420 2,68,86,893 41,21,200 4,99.20,513%
Balance as at 51 March 2019 2,42,96,554 2,80,92,767 77,15,458 6,01,04,779

(This spate bas been intenvionally left Wank)
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A

AROHAN

ALVISHHALR-INTELLECAP ENTERPRISE

Comiputer Total
Software

Gross block

Balance as at 1 April 2017 3,74,29,277 3,74,29,277

Addidons 4,51,18,120 4,51,18,120

Balance as at 31 March 2018 8,25,47,397 8,25,47,397

Additions 1,87.09,865 1,47,09,865

Reversal on disposal of assets 21,917 {21,917

Balance as at 31 March 2019 10,12,35,345 10,12,35,345

Accumulated amortisation

Up to 31 March 2017 1,40,27.910 1,40,27,910

Amertization charge 1,51,07,860 1,51,07,860

Up to 31 March 2018 2,91,35,770 2,91,35,770

Amortizadon charpe 1,50,69,141 1,50,69,141

Reversal on disposal of assets {6,671) 16,671)

Up to 31 march 2019 4,41,98,240 4,41,98,240

Net block

Balance 25 at 31 March 2018 " 5.34,11,627 5,34,11,627

Balance as at 31 March 2019 5,70,37,105 5,70,37,105
14 Investments

As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Nan-cugrent Custent Non-cucrent Current

In equity instruments (non-trade, unquoted)

50,000 (31 March 2018; 50,000) cquity shares of ¥ 10 each 5,00,000 - 5,00,000 .

fully paid in Alpha Micro Finance Consultant Private Limited

In muteal fonds (nen-wade, unguoted)

95 units of T 10 each fully paid-up of Axis Liquid

Instirutional Fund o ) ) 1,58.236

Aggregate amount of unguoted investmenis 5,00,000 - 500,000 1,58,296
15 Deferred ¢ax assets {net) As at As at

Deferted rax assers

On account of provision for standard and non performing assets
On disaliowances of expenses allowed on payment basis

On others

Dieferred tax liabilities

On difference between written down value of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets as per books and as per
income tax

Deferred tax assets (nex)

31 March 2019 31st March 2018

9,88,85,517 7,48,40,840
1,82,99,777 91,50,814
43,94217 8,32,655
12,15,79,511 8,48,24,309
(64.32,171) (63,013,575

11,51,47,340 7,85,10,734
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17

Loan to customers

Portfolio loans

Jeint Yability group and Individual loans:
Unsecured, considered good(®)
Unsecured, considered doubtful (%)

Loans to other NBFCs:
Secured, considered good(#)

Other retail loans:
Unsecured, considered good
Unseeured, considered doubtful

LAVISHEAAR-INTELLECAF ENTERPRISE

A AROHAN
AN

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 Macch 2018
MNon-current Current Non-current Current
7.88,56,23,567 23,78,81,12,267 4,01,92,71,163 15,21,13,06,548
14,74 68,099 - 24,4551 561 -
80,18,21,880 93,55,42 256 17,71,76,538 16,52,55,625
23,05,68 443 1,03,08,38,054 0,18,30,03¢ $7,58,09,552
5,34,95512 - 2,02,76,260 -
9,14,89,77,501 25,75,44,92,577 4,52,31,15,161  15,05,23,71,725

(*) Represents standard assets classified in accordance with the Master Directons.
{* Represents non-performing assets classified in accordance with the Master Directions.
(#) Secured by hypothecation of pool of nnderlying assets financed chere against.

Leans and advances
{Unsecrred, considered good, sinless orberwise stated)

Security deposits

Advance tax (aet of provision)

Advances to employees

Other receivables

Advances recoverzble on behaif of business
correspondent arrangements

As at As at
31 Match 2019 31st March 2015

Long-term Short-term Long-term Short-term
72,37,860 1,43,38,683 91,25,158 | 1,57,77,670

3,23.90,050 - 8,365,846 -
- 3,20,82,833 - 2,23,60,355
- 10,94,75,160 - 787,534,411
- 1,02,25,970 - 16872150
3,96,27,510 16,61,22,646 99,62,004 13,37,64,386

(This spare bas been intentionally hft blank)
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/\\ AROHAN
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LBVISHELAR-INTELLECAR ENTERPRISE

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months [refer {2) below]
Interest receivable on loan transfer transactions

Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Prepaid expenses

Unamortised loan processing charges on bostowed funds
Unamertised sourcing expenses

As at Ag at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
50,78,69,210 43.94,76,333
4,10,723 28,38,289
20847617 98,96,042
1,03,915 11,63,396
5,87.97,174 4,18,49,605
47.45,752 816012
59,27,74.391 49,60,39,677

(@) Includes deposits aggregating to ¥ 50,78,69,210 (31 March 2018; % 43,94,76,333) placed s margin money deposits to gvail
term loans from banks, financial instirutions and as cash collateral in connection with asser secusitisadon transactions.

19 Cash and bank halances

As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in corrent accounts 59,52,45,04% 84,9223 475
- in deposit accounts (with original maturity upto 3 months) [refer (2) below] 1,10,21,55,209 69,00,00,000
Cash in hand 4,38,75,47% 468,906,754
1,74,12,75,737 1,58,61,20,229
Other bank balances
Deposits with maturity of mote than 3 months but less than 12 months 33,65,065,369 19,29,13,547
frefer {a) below]
Total 2,07,78,41,106 1,77,90,33,776

(@ Includes deposits aggrepating to ¥ 33,87,20,578 (31 March 2018; % 19,08,38,778) placed as matgin money deposits to avail
term loans from banks, financial institations and as cash collateral in connection with securitisation transactions,

20 Other current assets

Accrued interest on loan 10 customers

Prepaid expenses

Unamortised sourcing expenses

Interest receivable on loan transfer cransactions

Unamortised loan processing charges on borrowed funds
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Interest strip on securitsation/ assignment transactions

As at Ag at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
36,45,03,632 22.85,78,383
1,05,12,951 18,63,970
24285294 1.31,31,938
3,08,01,376 3,44,87,560
6,08,35,261 4,15,53,147
1,33,35,900 1,63,05,092
11,37,31,009 2.8%,10,795
62,00,05,423 30,48,30,885

(This spare bas been Ieft intentionally blank)
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21 Revenue from operations
Interest on loan to customers
Income from loan processing fee
Income from securitisation/assignment
Insurance commission
Other operating revenues [refer (a) below]

AROHAN

A

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informati

BAVISHKAAT-INTELLECAP ENTERPRISE

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
5,36,77,99,116 2.85,70,48,780
34,04,04,580 15,83,03,577
31,10,66,707 4,63,71,429
1,50,04,997 2,58,97,067
21,60,04,883 12,92,73,273
6,31,02,80,283 3,21,68,94,126

(@ Includes interest on margin money deposiis placed to avail term loan from banks, financial institutions and on deposits
placed as cash collateral in connection with securitization atnounting to ¥ 3,97,15,874 (31 March 2018 ¥ 2,46,50,720).

22 Other income

Interest income on fixed deposits

Gain on sale of current investments

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Sundry balances written back

Grant received

Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation
Miscellaneous income

23 Employee benefits expense

Salaries and bonus/ allowances
Conwibudon to provident and other funds
Employee stock option compensation
Staff welfare expenses

2,13,02,436 1,88,43,215

94,56,122 2,10,73,824

- 1,46,479

. 4,03,099

8,85,765 50,389,272
22,238 -

45,48,402 77,25,849

3,62,14,963 5,32,81,738

1,04,82,12,964 62,08,04,286

6,85,03,981 5,06,05,487

147,122 19,87,222

5,69,86 267 1,81,83,873

1,17,38,50,354 €9,15,80,868

The Hon'ble supreme court has in a recent decision dated 28 February 2019, ruled that special allowance would form
part of basic wages for computing the provident fand contriburion . Management believes that there are numerous
interpretative issues on inclusion of special allowances for the purpose of provident fond contribution as well as its
applicability of effectdve date. While the Company is evaluating the jmplications of the order, the amount is not

determinable 2s no reliable estimate can be made

24 Finance costs

Interest expenses
Other borrowing costs

25 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment - tangible assets

(Refer note 12)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 13)

2,43,56,57,501 1,18,05,25,412
10,04,02,574 5,52,18,588
2,53,60,60,075 1,23,57,44,000
2,58,92,172 1,53,76,135
1,50,69,141 1,51,07,860
4,09,61,313 3,04,53,005
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27

@

Provisions and write off

Bad debt written off

Pravision for loan portfolio on standard assets {net of reversals)
Provision for loan portfolio on sub-standard assets (net of

treversals)

Other expenses

Rent

Repairs and maintenance-othets -

Insurance

Power and fuel

Rates and taxes

Office expenses

Membership and subscription

Dffice maintenance

Printing and stationery

Legal and professional expenses

Director's commission

Recruitment and induction expenses
Communication expenses

Travelling zand conveyance

Payment to auditors [Refer note (a} below]
Loss on foreign exchange fluctuation

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Carporate social responsibility expenses (refer note 36)
Miscellanecus expenses

Payments to auditors
Statutory audit

Tax audit(*)

In other capacity
Other services (¥%)

Reimbursement of expeases

{*) done by other auditors

{* T 1,33,600 perrains to services provided I:;y other auditots

{This space has been left intentionally blank)
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
25,31,50,093 34,18,10,286
18,76,51,809 (8,47,91,621}
(3,38,64,210) 22,85,23,797
40,69,37,692 48,55,42,462
9.71,67,052 5,85,66,004
4,06,15,818 1,78,00,042
1,63,80,146 1,01,75,891
1,05,77,608 66,86,031
5,33,68,473 1,88,53,346
1,67,06,996 1,58,02,482
48,537,347 55,256,817
2,08,34 281 1,22,15,947
23913,711 1,39.58,668
17,89,70,860 8,45,33 508

1,00,00,000 -
2,16,03,929 1,36,45,581
1,00,76,633 1,52,20,636
13,73,27 442 8,67,26,091
43.,14,200 31,95,27%
- 6,364

1,048 -
79.73,850 61,51,871
19,26,963 35,617,312
5,65,96,357 37,26,42,010
27,50,000 27,50,000
1,28,100 1,03,700
11,33,600 1,85,000
3,02,500 1,56,57%
43,14,200 31,95,279
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k)

Related party disclosures
Names of related partes and description of relationship

A AROHAN

ARVISHEAAR-INTELLECAR ENTERPRISE

Relationship

Name

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Mangj Kumar Narayan Nambiar - Manapging Director
Milind Ramchandra Naee - Chief Financial Officer

Anirudh Singh G Thakur (appointed 0n 23 October 2017) - Company Secretary
Vanita Mundhra {resipned wef 23 Ocrober 2017} - Company Secretary

Director

Dinesh Kumar Mittal (Independent Director)
Vineet Chandra Rel (Directos)

Anurag Agarwal (Director)

Matangi Gowrishankar (Independent Director)
Rajat Mohan Nag (Independent Director)
Sumaotrz Banesjee (Independent Directos)

Entities which are able w exercise contrel or have significant
influence

Intellectual Capital Advisory Services Private Limited

Tano India Private Equity Fund 11

Aavishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance Development Company-I1 Limited

Endtes under common control

Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Privare Limited
Asnvishkaar Capital Advisory LLP

Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited

. . . . Tribetech Prvate Limited
En fi |
terprise over which KMP have significant influence ot control Amudip Foundstion

Transactions with related parties Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Issue of equity shares (including share premium)

Aavishkaar Venture Management Secvices Private Limited 59,55,21,955 42,61,550

Intellectrual Capital Advisory Services Privare Limited - 12,35,44,990

Asvishkaar Goodwell India Microfinance Development Company-TI Limited - 10,12,78,050

Aavishkaar Capital Advisors LLP 1,05,44,77,946 -

Pordolio buyout

Jain Sons Finleage Limited - 12,04,956

Loan taken

Jain Sons Fintease Limited - 3,97,81 873

Aavishkaar Venrre Management Services Private Limited 1,50,00,00,000 -

Loan repaid

Jain Sons Finlcase Limited 2,68,08,076 3,25,23,807

Azvishkaar Venture Manzgement Services Privare Limited 1,50,00,00,000 -

Security deposit received

Tribergch Private Limited 14,32,503 14,87,500

Security deposit invoked

‘Trberech Private Limited 2953319 -

Purchase of properry, plant and equipment

Jain Sons Finlease Limited . 4749394

Interest paid

Jain Sons Finlease Limited 16,11,928 $1,16,893

Aavishkaar Venmre Manapement Servicss Private Limited 1,75,19,17% -

Cotporate social responsibility expenses
Anudip’ Foundadon

9,00,000
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<)

Professional/ business suppor fees

Aavishkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited
Tribetech Private Limited

Intellecap Advisary Services Private Limited

Loan processing charges
Jain Sons Finlease Limited

Reimbursernent of expenses paid

Tribetech Prvate Limited

Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited

Aavishkaar Vennee Management Services Private Limited

Reimbursemen: of expenses received
Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limired

Aavishlkaar Venture Management Services Private Limited
Tribetech Private Limited

Ditector's commission
Dinesh Kurac Miteal
Vineet Chandra Rai
Anurag Agrawal
Marangi Gowrishankar
Rajar Mohan Nag
Sumantta Banerjee

Remmuneration

Manoj Kumat Narayan Namnbiar
Mibind Ramchandra Nare
Anirudh Singh G Thakur

Vanita Mundhen

Year-end balances with related parties

Loans taken
Jain Bons Finlease Limited (inclnding interest due)

Security deposit refundable
‘T'ribetech Private Limited

Security deposit receivable
Tribetech Private Limited

Other payables

Tribetech Ptivate Linited

Anudip Foundation

Intellecap Advisory Services Private Limited
Dinesh Kumar Mittal

Vineet Chandra Rai

Anurag Agrawal

Matangi Gowrishanlear

Rajat Mohan Nag

Sumanira Banerjee

A

AROHAN

ALYISHICAAR-INTELLECER ENTERPRISE

Year ended Year ended
31 Mazch 2019 31 March 2018
31,62,738 5,67,0M1
55,50,493 15,386,188
6,92 886 35,79,7¢67
- 96,750
3,02 960 1,65,447
2,63,013 2,72.488
3,70,795 34,542
57,600 -
251,339 -
4,285,000 -
25,00,000 -
25,00,000 -
15,00,000 -
15,060,000 -
10,060,000 -
10,00,000 -
1,39,84,899 1,12,50,006
§2,05,789 68,93,311
55,73,857 19,88.950
- 5,28,684
As at As at
31st March 2019 3} March 2018
467,631 2,72 58,066
. 14,87,500
33,376 -
6,22,881 896,923
- 1,80,000
10,208 -
25,00,000 -
25,000,000 -
15,00,000 -
15,00,000 -
10,00,000 -

10,00,000
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i)

Additional disclosures pursuant to the RBI guidelines and notifications:

Capital

Capiwal to Risk/Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) (%)
CRAR-Tier I Capiual (%)

CRAR-Tier II Capital (%)

Amount of subordinated debr raised as Tier-IT Capital
Amount raised by issue of Perpemal Debt Instruments

Investments

A. Value of Investments
Gross Value of Investments:
) In India

b) Qutside India

Provisions for Depreciation:
4} Ip India
b} Outside India

Net Valoe of Invesmments
a) In India
) Outside India

B. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
Opening Balance
Add; Provisions made during the year

Less: Write-off/Write-back of excess provisions during the year
Closing Balance

Derivatives
The Company does not have any derivatives exposure in the carrent and previous year,

Disclosures relating 10 Securitisation

A) Securitisation

1} No. of §PVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions

2) Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsared
3) Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with
Minimurms Retendon Requirement (MRR) as on the date of balance sheet

g) Off-balance sheet exposures
{i} Firsc loss

(i) Others

b) On-balance sheet exposures
(@) First loss

{ii) Others

A AROHAN
N

AEHISHEALR-INTELLECAP ENTERPRISE

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
20.05% 23.63%
15.86% 16.81%

4.19% 6.82%
35,00,00,000 1,15,00,00,000
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
5,00,000 6,58,296
5,00,000 6,58,296

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1 H
65,58,43,568 40,12,11,368
13,11,68,714 4,27,12,743
‘ - 8,02.42274




Arohan Financial Services Limited A A R 0 H A N

(Formetly Archan Financial Services Private Limited)
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

AIVISERALR-INTELLECAP ENTERPPISE

(All amounts in T unless otherwise stted)

i}

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

4) Amouat of exposures to securitsation transactions other than MRR
2y Off-balance sheet exposures

(i) Exposure to own securitisadons

- First loss

- Orthers

(ii) Exposure ta third party securitisations
- First loss

- Others

b) On-balance sheet exposures

(i) Exposure to own securitisations

- First loss

- Others

(i) Exposure to third party securitsations
- First loss

- Others

Credit enhancements provided and outstanding (Gross):
Principal collaterslisation

- 4.4579,041
Interest collateralisation . - 42712743
Cotporate gurantee 13,11,68,714
Cash collaterat " - 5,56,63,233

B} Details of Financial Assets sold to Secutitisation/Reconstruction Company for Asset reconstruction
The Company has not sold any financial assets to Securitsation/Reconstrucdon Company for Asset Reconstruction during the

current and previous year.

C) Details of Assignment transactions undertaken by NBFCs
31 March 2019 31st March 2018

i) Numbert of zccouncs 4,44,506 51,074
iy Aggregate value (net of provision) of account sold . 7,38,10,41,989 48 44,72 045
iy Agegregate consideration 7.38,10,41,98% 48.44,72,045

iv) Additonal consideraton realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier year
v} Aggergate gain/ loss over net book valae

D) Details of non-performing financiel assets purchased/sold

The Company has not purchased/sold any non-performing fimancial assets (velated to secutitisation) duting the current and previous
year. )

Asset Liability Management

Disclosures relating to maturity pattern of certain iwems of assets and Labilities are given in Note 30.

Exposures

A) Exposure to Real Estate Sector

The Company did not have any exposurs to real cstate sector during che carrent and previous year.

B) Exposure 1o Capital Market

The Company did not have any exposare to capital matker during the current and previous year.
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ALVISHEARP-INTELLECAR ENTERPRISE

C) Details of financing of parent company products
The Company does not have a parent company and accordingly no disclosures required.

B} Details of Single Borrower Limnit {SBL)/Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC
There are no instances of exceeding the single and group borrowing limit by the Company duriag the current and previous year,

E) Unsecured Advances - refes Note 16.

vii) Miscellaneous

A) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

The Company has obtained a certificate of registration under tegistration number CA0402 dated 1 August 2016 to acr as Corporate

Agent (Composite) under Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDA) and Corporate Identity Number of
U74140WB1991PLC0O53189 under Ministry of Corporate affairs,

B} Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI and other tegulators

An amount of T 10,18,080 has been paid to Reserve Bank of India towards late submission fees of PFCGPR under Foreign Exchanpe
Management Act, 1999 (es amended)

C) Related Party Transactions
Details of all material related party transactions are disclosed in Note 28,

D) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

The details of ratings assigned by Credic Analysis & Research Lid. (CARE) vide their report dated 29 March 2019 and migration of
tatings during the year are as follows:
Facilities

Ratings Remarks
Long-term Bank facilities ‘ CARE A- Reaffirmed
Non-Convertible Debentures CARE A- Reaffirmed
Unsecured Subordinated Tier I Debt CARE A- Reaffirmed

E) Remuneration of Direetors (other then Managing Director) (refer note 28)

Name of Directors 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Dinesh Kumar Mittal 25,00.000 -
Vineet Chandra Rai 25,00,000 -
Anurag Agrawal 15,00,000 -
Matangi Gowrishankar 15,00,000 -
Rajat Mohan Nag 10,00,000 -
Sumantra Banerjee 10,00,000 -

viif) Additional Disclosuses

A) Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of 'Provisions and Contingencies' shown under the head

Expenditure in Statemment of Profit and Loss 31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Provision towards standard assets {refer note 26) 18,76,51,809 (8,47,91,621)
Provision rowards non petforming assets (refer note 26) (3,38,64,210) 228523797
Provision made towards Income tax {(ncluding for eatlier year) : 44,79,74,209 20,16,06,775

Other Provision and Contingencies {employee benefit) 2,61,81,782 1,66,96,686




Arohan Financial Services Limited A A Ro H A N
(Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited) A

© KAVISHKARR-INTELLECAP ENTERPRISE
Sumnmary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information i

{All emouns in T unless otherwise stated)

B) Draw Down from Reserves

There have been no instances of draw down from reserves by the Company during the current and previous year.

€) Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NTPAs

a) Concearration of Advances
Totzl Advances to twenty largest borrowers

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

1,74,73,64,133 435174257

Percentage of Advaaces to twenty Jargest borrowers to Total Advances 5.01% 2.12%
31 March 2019 31 Mazch 2018

b) Concentration of Expasures

‘Total exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 1,74,73,64,133 43,51,74,257

Percentage of exposures to twenty largest botrowers / customers to Tozl Exposure 5.01% 212%

<) Concentration of NPAs

Total exposure to top four NPA accounts 1,38,36,617 92,11,299

d) Sector-wise NPAs

Agriculture & allied acdvities

Percentage of NPAs to Total Advances
in that sector

0.28%
MSME Nil
Corporate borrowets (%) Nil
Services 2.71%
Unsecured personal loans 2.28%
Auw lozns Nil
Other personal loans Nil

") Corporate bottowers are included in the respective sector.

¢} Movement of NPAs

1) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

0.00% 0.00%
i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
1) Opening Balance 26,48,27.821 3,26,32,176
b} Addifions during the year 34,47,70,141 64,45,95,640
€} Reductions during the year 37,86,34,351 41,23,97,995
d) Closing balace 23,09,63,611 26,48,27,821
itf) Movement of Net NPAs
#) Opening Balance - .
b} Additions during the year - -
¢) Reductions during the year - -
d) Closing balance - -
iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
) Opening Balance 26,48,27,82% 3,26,32,176
b) Provisicns made during the year 34,47,70,141 64,45,93,640
c) Write-off/wtite-back of excess provisions 37,86,34,351 41,23,97.993

d) Closing balance

23,09,63,611

26,48,27,821




Arohan Financial Services Limited
(Formerly Aroban Financial Services Private Limited)

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

f) Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)
The Company did not have any overseas assets during the cutrent angd previous year.

g) Off-balance sheet SPVs sponsored
(whick are required 10 be consolidared as per Accounting norms}
The Company did not sponsor any SPVs during the current and previous year.

Disclosure of customer complaints

4} No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year
b} No. of complaints reccived during the year

©) No. of complaints redressed during the year

d) No. of comphints pending ar the end of the year

Information on instances of fraud identified during the year

Narure of fraud

Cash embezzlement
No, of cases

Amount of fraud
Recovery

Amount provided for
Loans given against fictdtious documents
No. of cases

Amount of fraud
Recovery

Amount provided for
Others (Snatching ete)
No. of cases

Amount of fraud
Recovery

Amount provided for

Information on net interest masgin (qualifying asset)
Particulars

Average Incerest (2)

Average effective cost of borrowing (b)

Net Interest margin (a-b)

(This space has boen left intentionally bland:)
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3 Mareh 2019 31 Marzch 2018
74 10
766 690
806 726
34 74
3 March 2019 31 March 2018
9 4
27,59,988 14,49,185
10,61,472 75,000
16,98,516 13,74,185
1 .
4.98.000 -
4,938,000 -
32 17
39,89,383 23,01,791
8.10,751 -
31,78,652 23,01,791
31 March 2015 31 March 2018
20.89% 22.11%
10.94% 12,45%
9.95%, 3.66%
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Arohan Financial Services Limited
{Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limired)

A

Summatry of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

32 Additional disclosures pursuant to Para 18 of Master Direction -

Important Non-Depasit taking company and Deposit

Liabilities side ¢

(1) Loans and advances availed by the non-banking financial company inclusive of

interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(2} Debentures
Secured
Unsecured

(other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)

(b) Deferred Credits

(¢) Term Loans (includes short-term borrowings)
Secured

Unsecured

(d) Inter-corpotate loans and borrowing

(©) Commercial Paper

{fi Other Loans

Assets side ;
(2) Break up of Loans and Advances:
a) Secured, gross
b) Unsecured, gross
Tatal

(3) Break up of Leased Assers

AROHAN

AAVISHKALR-INTELLECAR ENTERPRISE

Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemdcally

taking company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

As at 31 March 2019
Amount Amount
outstanding overdue
62,51,69,139 -
1,10,87,03,223 -

26,52,01,69,930
75,82,27,754
4,67,631

75,23,67,330

() Lease assets inchuding lease rentals under sundry debtors:

(2) finance Jease
(b) operating lease

() Scock on hire including hire charges under sundry debrors:

(a) assets on hire

(b) repossessed asset

(iii) Other Joans counting towards AFC activities
(a) loans where asses have basn repossessed

{b) loans other than {2) above

@) Breakup of investments ( long-term unquoted equicy}
Current Investmenss ;
1, Quoted
(@ Shares
(@®) Equity
(&) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
i) Units of mutnal funds
(i¥) Gevernment Securities
(v) Others

2. Unqguoted

{)) Shares

(a) Equity

{b) Preference

(i) Debentures and Bonds
(i}Units of mutual funds
{iv} Government Secutites
(v) Orthers

As ar 31 March 2019

1,73,73,64,136
33,16,61,05,942
34,%0,34,70,078




Arohan Financial Services Limited A R -
(Formerly Atohan Financial Services Private Limited) PN, HISHIAPINTELLECP ENTERPRISE

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(ALl amounts in ¥ unless otherwise stated)

Additional disclosures pursuant to Paca 18 of Master Ditection - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemnically Important Non-
Deposit taking company and Deposit taking company (Reserve Bank) Direcdons, 2016 (condnued)

3 March 2019

Long Term investments :

1. Quoted

(D Shares :

{#) Equity

(b) Preference

{) Debentures and Bonds .
(iii) Units of mutual Fands

(iv) Government Securities

(v) Others

2.Unguoted
(i) Shares:
(s) Equity 5,00,000
() Preferenice

(i) Debentures and Bonds

(i) Units of mumal funds

(iv) Government Securities '
() Others

(8) Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (2
and (3}

Net of provision as at 31st March 2019

Category Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related parties

(2) Subsidiaries -
(b) Companies in the same group -
() other related parties

2. Other than related pasties 1,73,04,14,679 32,74,82,07,253 34,47,86,21,932
Total 1,73,04,14,67¢ 32,74,82,07,253 34,47,86,21,932
©) Investor group-wise classification of all investments (cusrent
and long term) in shares and securities (both quoted and
unguoted)
Market value / Bock value
Breakup or fuir value  (net of provisions)
Category or NAV
1. Related parties. - -
2. Other than related parties 5,00,000 5,00,000
Total 5,00,000 500,000
(7} Other information 31 March 2019
() Gross non-performing assets
(@} Related parties -
{b) Other than related pardes 23,09,63,611
(i) Net non-performing assets
(a) Related parties -

(b) Other than related pardes
(i) Assets acquired on satisfaction of debt




Aroban Financial Services Limited
{Formerly Arohan Financial Services Private Limited)

Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
{All zmounis in T unless otherwise stared)

33 Contingent liabilities and commitments

A

AROHAN

AEVISHILLAR-INTELLECAP ENTERPRISE

(&) Demand for income tax received from income tax authorities in respect of which the Company has gone for appeal is T 29,06,880 (31 March 2018: ¥
96,19,510). Based on the management assessment, crystallization of liabifity on these items is nor considered probable 20d henee not acknowledged as debt

by the Company.

() Corporate Guaranter provided to Induslnd Bank towards partnership agreement for % 75,00,000 (31 March 2018; £ 75,00,000).
{c) Corporate gurantee in the form of credit enhancement provided towards secrutisation for ¥ 13,11,68,714 (31 March 2018: 2 Nil).

{d) Capital commitment for purchase/ development of rangible and intangible asset (net of advances) % 16,44,200 (31 March 2018: T 97,31,128).

34 Famings per equity share [EPES]

4)  Proit considered for computation of basic and diluted EPES

b) Compuration of weighred average number of equity shares in computation of basic
and diluted EPES

Weighted average number of shares considered for computation of basic EPES
Adi: Effect of shares fssued under BSOP scheme

Weighted average aumbec of shares considered for computadon of diluted EFES

©)  Eurnings per equity shace [EPES]
Bawic EPES
Diinwed EPES

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
1,12)07,51,772 20 66,61.616

9,11,40,073 8,85,10,170

1,93,542 2255
9,13,33,615 £,35,12,425
12.30 3,25

12,27 335
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stared)

35 Foreign Carrency Disclosures Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
&)  Earnings in foreign cusrency
Grantincome 347,126 50,89,272
347,126 50,89.272_
b)  Expendirure in foreign currency
Other borrowing costs 38,12,278 -
38,12,278 -
¢} Unhedged foreign currency exposure - Nil
36 Disclosure in respect of Corporate Social Responsibility under section 135 of the Act and Rules thereon
(2) Gross amount required to be spent during the yeac 79,753,850 59,97,398
(b) Amount spent during the period/ year on purposes other
than construction/acquisition of any asset
Paid 77,67,055 59,66,871
Yet to be paid 2,06,795 1,85,000
Tortal 79,73,850 61,51,871

37  Segment mpoxﬁng

The Company operates in « single repottable segment i.e. financing, which has sitilar risks and rerurns for the purpose of
AS 17 on ‘Segment Reporting’. The Company does not have any yeportable geographical segment,

38 Lease payments made under cancellable operating jease amounting to T 9,28,72,456 (31 March 2018 ¥ 5,13,77,486)
disclosed as rent and the same has been recognised 25 an expense in the Statement of Profit and Toss.

39 The Company has taken on operating lease certain facilities and office premises for 1 period ranging from 11 moaths co 36
manths which are non-cancellable for the period as reflected in the tespective agrecments. These lease apreements provide
for incrense in the lease payments by 5 % to 15 % over the period 25 mentioned in the agreements. The total minimurn lease

payrents for the cusrent period, in respect of operating leases, included under rent, aggregates 1o T 42,94,596 (31 March
2018 : ¥ 71,88,608)

The future lease payments in respect of the above are as foliows-:

Particulars As ar As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Not Iater than one year 42,62,656 3924480

Later than one year but not later than five yeats 55,38,876 12,32,555

Later than 5 years
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Summaty of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
(All amounts in T unless otherwise stated)

40 Previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary, to confirm to cutrent year presentation.

This is the summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information referred in our report of even date,

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Fitm Registration No. 001076N/N500013 )

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

0 szi.uancial Setvices Limited

ar Nambiar Anurag Agrawal
PR ector Director

g
Anamitra Das - (DIN;: 03172919) (DIN: 02385750)

Parizcs | Y Joo
Membership No. 062191 A " ' .

Anitudh Singh G Thakur Milind Nare
of Fi = OF
Place: Kolkata Company Secretary Chief Financial Qfficer
Date: 15 May 2019

Place: Kolkata
Date: 15 May 2019




